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New Stockmann staff – young salespeople in front of the Riga department store.
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Stockmann Group’s core values

Stockmann is a Finnish listed company which was established

in 1862 and is engaged in the retail trade. It has about 16 000 shareholders.

Customer satisfaction is the central objective of Stockmann’s trading

in all its areas of business. Stockmann’s four divisions are the Department Store

Division, the Vehicle Division, the Hobby Hall Division, which is specialized

in mail order sales and e-commerce, and Seppälä, a chain of fashion stores.

Stockmann operates in Finland, Russia, Estonia, Latvia and Lithuania.

Stockmann in brief

Profit orientation
We are in business to make money; all our op-
erations should support this goal. Healthy earn-
ings mean a good return for investors and lati-
tude of movement and risk-taking ability for the
company. For good people who are committed
to our common goals, it means a highly respec-
ted job and an opportunity for self-development.

Customer orientation
We earn money only by offering benefits which
the customer perceives as real and better than
those of our competitors. The sum total of these
benefits is high customer satisfaction and loyal-
ty. Competitive pricing, reliable quality and good
customer service are vital elements in achieving
these goals.

Efficiency
By performing better than our competitors, we
boost sales, secure high cost-effectiveness and
use capital efficiently.

Commitment
In all our activities, success calls for an under-
standing of the importance of Stockmann’s
company-wide success factors and the role of
our own unit in achieving them as well as a
commitment to the goals we all share together.

Respect for our people
We respect and value people’s capacity for com-
mitment, taking calculated risks and producing
results. We reward success.

Social responsibility
Our way of operating is ethical, just and shows
respect for environmental values.

Cover picture: The evening before the opening of 
the Stockmann department store in Riga in October 2003.
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Stockmann in 2003

Sales by quarter 2002–2003, EUR mill.

Operating profit by quarter 2002–2003, EUR mill.

Key figures



32%  Fashion

28%  Motor vehicles

14%  Home

11%  Food

10%  Leisure

  5%  Books, publications, stationery

Sales by sector

89.0%  Finland

  5.1%  Russia

  4.4%  Estonia

  1.2%  Latvia

  0.3%  Lithuania

Sales by market
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Divisions in short

Department
Store Division
Jukka Hienonen

Vehicle Division
Esa Mäkinen

Hobby Hall Division
Henri Bucht

Seppälä Division
Heikki Väänänen

Locations

• 6 department stores, 5 Academic Book-
stores, 3 Zara stores and 7 Stockmann 
Beauty stores in Finland

• A department store, a Zara store and
a boutique in Moscow, Russia

• 2 speciality stores in St Petersburg, Russia
• A department store in Tallinn, Estonia
• A department store in Riga, Latvia

• 11 outlets in the Helsinki metropolitan
area: Ford, Volkswagen and Audi cars,
a wide selection of trade-in vehicles as well
as vehicle servicing and repair centres

• An outlet in Turku: Ford dealership,
vehicle servicing and repair centre

• An outlet in Tampere: Skoda dealership,
a wide selection of trade-in vehicles as
well as vehicle servicing and repair centre

• Finland’s largest mail order sales company
and leading online store

• 2 stores in Finland: in Helsinki and Vantaa
• Estonia’s largest mail order sales company,

an online store, a store in Tallinn
• Latvia’s largest mail order sales company
• Lithuania’s largest mail order sales company

• Finland’s and Estonia’s most extensive 
chain of fashion stores 

• 127 stores in Finland
• 13 stores in Estonia
• 4 stores in Latvia

Offers customers a knowledge-
able shopping environment and
good service in a congenial
atmosphere. The key to Stock-
mann’s success is a unique and
broad assortment of good prod-
ucts at competitive prices.

Offers a very wide range of
high quality car makes and mod-
els. Reliable quality and custo-
mer service are especially
important advantages within
servicing, repair and spare
parts for customers’ vehicles.

Hobby Hall offers an easy,
reliable and pleasant alternative
for buying quality products at
affordable prices. Its offerings
consist primarily of household
and leisure articles.

Offers customers women’s,
men’s and children’s apparel,
shoes and cosmetics at rea-
sonable prices. The collections
are based on Seppälä’s own
product design and own brands.
Seppälä’s expertise rests on
the correct combination of basic
and trendy products.

50%

EUR 851.3 mill.

Divisions and
their management

Share of
Stockmann’s sales

ˇ

Offerings

28%

EUR 480.4 mill.

14%

EUR 235.7 mill.

  8%

EUR 130.3 mill.
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February
The first issue of the stylish Exclusive magazine for
Stockmann’s Exclusive Loyal Customers came out both in
a Finnish and in a Swedish language version. The new
magazine is published four times a year.
Moscow’s first Zara store was opened in the Mega Shop-
ping Centre.
Hobby Hall’s mail order operations in Lithuania got under
way in earnest by distributing a nationwide customer
acquisition catalogue in conjunction with supporting tele-
vision advertising.
Loyal Customer marketing was launched in St Petersburg.
Environmental system covering Stockmann’s Helsinki
department store and the Academic Bookstore in the cen-
tre of Helsinki as well as the the purchasing and ware-
housing functions of the Department Store Division
received the Stockmann Group’s first ISO 14001 certificate.

March
In line with its strategy of freeing up capital, Stockmann sold
its department store property in Espoo's Tapiola district to a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Dutch property company
Wereldhave N.V. At the same time, Stockmann leased the di-
vested property from the new owner for the Tapiola depart-
ment store’s use under a long-term leaseback agreement.

April
Stockmann and IKEA’s Russian subsidiary LLC IKEA
MOS entered into a lease agreement on a Stockmann
department store with about 10 000 square metres of retail
space that will be located in the Mega Shopping Centre on
the south side of Moscow. The new Stockmann will open
its doors to the public in spring 2004.
New Zara stores were opened in Finland in Helsinki’s
Itäkeskus Shopping Centre and in Turku’s Hansa Block. 
Jordan’s Queen Noor visited the Academic Bookstore.

May
Stockmann sold Academic Bookstore’s agency sales of
magazine and newspaper subscriptions to Suomalainen
Kirjakauppa Oy. The business was transferred to the new
owner as from the beginning of June. Academic Bookstore
will continue acting as an agent for magazine and newspa-
per subscriptions ordered by Stockmann's Loyal Customers.

June
June 7 marked ten years from the date when Stockmann
opened its first store in Estonia in Tallinn’s Viru Centre.

August
Seppälä opened its first store in Riga, Latvia’s capital city.
Sweden’s Crown Princess Victoria paid a visit to the Aca-
demic Bookstore. 
The preliminary agreement that was signed with ZAO
Znamenskaya concerning a department store in St Peters-
burg lapsed because the owner of the property did not man-

Major events in 2003

age to arrange the financing required for implementing the
shopping centre by the deadline specified in the agreement.

September
Hobby Hall closed its store in Helsinki’s Herttoniemi district.

October
Stockmann’s new department store opened its doors in
the centre of Riga. The department store, which has 11 000
square metres of retail space, is part of a joint project
between Stockmann and Rautakirja, in which Rautakirja’s
share comprises a 14-cinema film centre. Seppälä opened
its fourth store in Latvia in the same property.
Stockmann entered into an agreement with IKEA on open-
ing a Stockmann department store with 10 000 square
metres of retail space in the Mega North Shopping Centre
too. IKEA will build the Mega North on the north side of
Moscow. This department store, Stockmann’s third in
Moscow, is to be opened at the end of 2004.
Stockmann’s territory as an Audi dealer was extended to
eastern and western Uusimaa province in addition to the
existing dealership in the Helsinki metropolitan area.
Stockmann announced it was starting refurbishing and
enlargement works in the Stockmann-owned building that
is located in the Suomenoja district of Espoo and is used
by the Vehicle Division. When the new facilities are com-
pleted in spring 2004, Finland’s first Audi showroom will
be opened in them.
The Vehicle Division wound up its last Mitsubishi dealer-
ship. The Tampere sales outlet will continue acting as a
Skoda dealer and will still service Mitsubishi cars in addi-
tion to Skoda.
Hobby Hall announced it intended to pursue a sharper
focus on distance retailing. Accordingly, it boosted the
efficiency of logistics and product range management and
altered the role of the stores to support distance retailing.
It was decided to wind up three stores. Operations of the
stores in Espoo, Tampere and the centre of Tallinn were
terminated during the winter season. 
The Tapiola department store received 670 square metres
of additional retail space. The new facilities will house the
One Way youth clothing department and the Music
Department. The department store now has a total of
about 12 000 square metres of retail space.

December
December saw the publication of journalist Jaakko Ojanne’s
historical review Eteenpäin, enemmän, paremmin – Sep-
pälä, suomalainen vaatettaja 1930-2003 (“Ahead, more, bet-
ter – Seppälä, Finnish Clothier, 1930-2003”).
The environmental system of the Oulu department store
marked the last of Stockmann’s department stores in
Finland to be certified according to the ISO 14001 stan-
dard. Stockmann is the first Finnish company whose entire
chain of department stores in Finland has received the ISO
14001 accreditation.
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•
•
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Annual General Meeting
The 2004 Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of
Stockmann plc will be held on Tuesday, March 30, 2004, at
4.00 p.m. in the Concert Hall of Finlandia Hall at the address
Karamzininkatu 4, Helsinki.

Registrations for the meeting must be received no later
than on March 25, 2004, at 4.00 p.m., telephone 
+358 9 121 4010 or e-mail agm@stockmann.fi.

Those shareholders are entitled to participate in the Annual
General Meeting, who have been entered on March 19, 2004,
as shareholders in the Shareholder Register kept by Finnish
Central Securities Depository Ltd.

Also a shareholder whose shares have not been trans-
ferred to the book-entry system has the right to participate
in the Annual General Meeting if that shareholder has been
registered in the company’s Share Register before September
28, 1994. In this case the shareholder must present, at the An-
nual General Meeting, his share(s) or other documentation
indicating that title to the shares has not been transferred to
the book-entry system.

A shareholder shall exercise his right to vote at a General
Meeting personally or via a proxy. In addition, a sharehold-
er has the right to use an assistant.

Payment of dividend
The Board of Directors proposes to the Annual General Meet-
ing that a dividend of EUR 0.90 per share and a supplemen-
tary dividend of EUR 0.45 per share or a total of EUR 1.35 per
share be paid for the 2003 financial year. The dividends de-
cided by the Annual General Meeting will be paid to a share-
holder who on the record date for dividend payment, April 2,
2004, has been entered in the Shareholder Register kept by
Finnish Central Securities Depository Ltd. The Board propo-

Alfred Berg ABN AMRO
Tia Lehto
Kluuvikatu 3, FI-00100 Helsinki
Tel. +358 9 228 321

Carnegie Investment Bank AB,
Finland Branch
Kim Nummelin
Eteläesplanadi 12, FI-00130 Helsinki
Tel. +358 9 618 711

Conventum Securities Limited
Kalle Karppinen
Kaivokatu 12 A, FI-00100 Helsinki
Tel. +358 9 231 231

CAI Cheuvreux
Frans Hoyer
122 Leadenhall Street, London EC3V 4QH
Tel. +44 (0) 207 621 5100

According to information we have received, the analysts mentioned below follow Stockmann on their own 

initiative. The list may be incomplete. Stockmann does not assume responsibility for analysts’ assessments.

Information for shareholders

ses to the Annual General Meeting that the dividends be paid
on April 14, 2004, upon termination of the record period.

Changes in name and address
We kindly request shareholders to report changes of address
to the bank or to Finnish Central Securities Depository Ltd
in accordance with the place where the shareholder’s book-
entry account is kept.

Financial information on Stockmann
Stockmann will publish the following financial reports in 2004:

– January-March Interim Report April 27, 2004 
– January-June Interim Report August 11, 2004 
– January-September Interim Report October 26, 2004 

In addition to these reports, we will release a monthly re-
port on the sales of the units.

Financial reports and bulletins are published in Finnish,
Swedish and English.

All of Stockmann’s stock exchange releases will be avail-
able on the Internet on their date of publication. Address:
http://www.stockmann.fi.

Investor Relations:
e-mail investor.relations@stockmann.fi

Report and bulletin requests:
STOCKMANN, Corporate Communications, 
P.O. Box 220, FI-00101 Helsinki, Finland
Telephone +358 9 121 3089
Fax +358 9 121 3153
e-mail info@stockmann.fi

Information on Stockmann for investors

Deutsche Bank Global Equities
Mattias Karlkjell
Stureplan 4 A, S-114 87 Stockholm
Tel. +46 8 463 5519

Enskilda Securities AB
Alexander von Nandelstadh
Eteläesplanadi 12, FI-00130 Helsinki
Tel. +358 9 616 289 00

Evli Bank Plc
Mika Karppinen
Aleksanterinkatu 19 A, FI-00100 Helsinki
Tel. +358 9 476 690

FIM Securities Ltd.
Kim Gorschelnik
Pohjoisesplanadi 33 A, FI-00100 Helsinki
Tel. +358 9 613 4600

Handelsbanken Capital Markets
Tom Skogman
Aleksanterinkatu 11, FI-00100 Helsinki
Tel. +358 10 444 2752

Mandatum Stockbrokers Ltd.
Pia Maljanen
Eteläesplanadi 8, FI-00130 Helsinki
Tel. +358 10 236 4707

Nordea Securities
Juha Iso-Herttua
Aleksis Kiven katu 9, FI-00500 Helsinki
Tel. +358 9 1651

Opstock Ltd.
Jari Räisänen
Teollisuuskatu 1 B, FI-00510 Helsinki
Tel. +358 9 404 739
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CEO’s review

inland’s economic growth in 2003 was greatly de-
pendent on the retail and service sector. Consumer
confidence remained exceptionally high compared

with many European countries and it strengthened towards
the end of the year. In Russia and the Baltic countries, eco-
nomic growth was again clearly faster than in Finland.

Of the Stockmann Group’s business units, the Department
Store Division, Vehicle Division and Seppälä reached or ex-
ceeded their year-ago earnings level, whereas Hobby Hall’s
result weakened and fell markedly into the red. Other oper-
ating income increased substantially compared with the pre-
vious year. This was due mainly to the capital gains booked
on the disposal of the Tapiola department store property and
Academic Bookstore’s agency sales of magazine and news-
paper subscriptions. Consolidated profit before extraordi-
nary items was EUR 74 million, improving by 7.9 per cent on
the previous year. The return on capital employed grew from
12.6 per cent to 13.2 per cent and the operating profit margin
remained at the previous year’s level of 4.7 per cent. These
figures are still somewhat lower than the Group’s long-term
targets, a 15 per cent return on capital employed and a 5 per

cent operating profit margin. The company is aiming to reach
these targets by 2005 at the latest.

The Group’s sales last year totalled EUR 1.7 billion, in-
creasing by EUR 116.3 million or 7.4 per cent. Like-for-like
growth net of the sales of the new units opened during the
year was 6 per cent.

The department stores, motor trade 
and Seppälä show steady development
The Department Store Division maintained its record earn-
ings level of a year ago. Earnings from department store op-
erations in Finland improved markedly. The result of Inter-
national Operations was burdened by the pre-opening ex-
penses for the Riga department store that was opened at the
end of the year as well as by the weakening in the exchange
rate of the US dollar, which was still used as the pricing cur-
rency of operations in Russia last year, by more than 20 per
cent against the euro. Nonetheless, international operations
posted a positive result. The Department Store Division’s re-
turn on capital employed is very high by international stan-
dards, 21.1 per cent.

Growth abroad gets under way

F
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As a consequence of the car tax reform, the aggregate new
car market grew by about 25 per cent. Stockmann succeed-
ed in increasing its market shares in all the localities where it
operates. Despite a slight drop in the relative gross margin,
the Vehicle Division improved on its record operating profit
posted a year ago. The return on capital employed was 13.2
per cent.

The turnaround that Hobby Hall was expected to make
failed to materialize. Although the company’s sales were at
the previous year’s level and it retained its position as the
out-and-out market leader in distance retailing in all its mar-
ket areas, the operating result weakened substantially and
was a loss. This was due to the marked weakening in the rel-
ative gross margin, which was caused by increased wastage
and one-time write-downs made on stocks. In these condi-
tions the actions carried out as part of the streamlining pro-
gramme that was launched a year earlier were not enough
to turn the company around. This made it necessary to start
an additional programme that aims to sharpen Hobby Hall’s
focus on distance retailing. Three stores closed down their
operations in the first part of 2004. Logistical functions will
be centralized in a single location at the beginning of 2005.
Hobby Hall’s result is expected to swing upwards right in the
first half of this year.

In a difficult year for the clothing trade, Seppälä improved
its relative profitability further. Operating with a substantial-
ly lower stock level, the company’s sales fell slightly short of
the previous year’s figure, but operating profit remained at a
very high level. The return on capital employed improved and
rose to 58.5 per cent. Seppälä succeeded in expanding its op-
erations to the Latvian market in autumn 2003, and this year
its operations will expand to Russia. If successful, this will of-
fer excellent opportunities for Seppälä’s future growth. 

Future growth from abroad
The Stockmann Group has a strong position in its home mar-
ket. The factors behind this solid position are the department
store operations and Seppälä’s chain of stores – both of which
are highly profitable – Hobby Hall’s market leadership in dis-
tance retailing and the Vehicle Division’s track record as the
largest seller of new vehicles in the Helsinki metropolitan area.

From now on, the Group has only limited possibilities to
achieve organic growth in the Finnish market. Amongst the
major growth projects in Finland are the opening of a de-
partment store in the extension to the Jumbo Shopping Cen-
tre in Vantaa in 2006 at the latest as well as the realization of
the enlargement project for the Helsinki department store by
the end of 2008. After these projects are completed, organic
growth must be sought beyond Finland’s borders – in Russia
and the Baltic countries. The objective is that by 2008 at least
a third of the Group’s sales and earnings will come from
abroad. In 2003, sales abroad accounted for 11 per cent of the
Group’s aggregate sales, already reaching 16 per cent in the
Department Store Division.

The share of sales abroad will grow smartly in 2004, when
the Riga department store is in business for its first full year
and two new full-size department stores are opened in
Moscow along with two or three new Zara stores. Seppälä
too is continuing its expansion in Latvia and will open its first
stores in Russia as well. Hobby Hall is carrying out test mar-

keting in Russia, on the basis of which decisions on future
measures will be taken.

Capital structure to be lightened 
by paying a bonus dividend
Over the past years the Stockmann Group has had a positive
earnings trend, strong balance sheet and very high equity ra-
tio. More than 50 000 share option subscriptions were made
on the basis of the share option programme for Loyal Cus-
tomers that was adopted back in 2000. Under the terms and
conditions, shares must be subscribed for with the options no
later than in May 2005. Because of the positive trend in the
company’s share price, presumably the bulk of the shares be-
ing offered will be subscribed for. This, together with the ex-
ercisable or soon-to-be-exercisable key employee share op-
tions, means that in the years 2003-2007 a total of about 60-
65 million euros of equity will come into the company’s cof-
fers, further strengthening its equity ratio. For this reason, the
Board of Directors is proposing that an ordinary dividend of
EUR 0.90 and a bonus dividend of EUR 0.45 per share be paid
out for the 2003 financial year.

The company’s market capitalization rose strongly. At the
close of the year it was EUR 955.6 million, or 34.6 per cent
higher than at the end of the previous year. The trend in the
HEX Portfolio Index over the same period was up 16.2 per
cent. Share turnover was quite fair, with more than 20 per
cent of the shares changing owners during the year. Foreign
ownership grew substantially, but is still at a moderate level.

Operational result set to improve in 2004
The Group’s earnings improved again in 2003. Although Hob-
by Hall’s result was a substantial loss, the operational result
was nevertheless only slightly below the previous year’s
figure. Owing to the disposals of real-estate and business op-
erations last year, other operating income was markedly
higher than a year ago.

Profit on ordinary operations in 2004 is expected to im-
prove, driven above all by the clearly better earnings gener-
ated by the Department Store Division’s International Oper-
ations and Hobby Hall. Other operating income will depend
on the decisions that are taken during the year. The Group’s
objective is to post a higher profit before extraordinary items
in 2004 than a year ago.

For my part and on behalf of our entire management, I wish
to thank our customers for the confidence they have shown
in us. We are striving for a continuous improvement in our
customer service. We also measure the development of ser-
vice closely. On the basis of the results obtained during the
past year, we have succeeded well in improving our service.
My thanks for this good performance go to our top-flight staff
all across the Group, both as individuals and as members of
teams, some of whom have been preserved for posterity in
the photographs appearing in this Annual Report.

Helsinki, February 12, 2004

Hannu Penttilä



The members of the Board of Directors and the personnel representatives on the Board. From the left, Christoffer Taxell, 
Henry Wiklund, Lea Musone, Erkki Etola, Kari Niemistö, Eva Liljeblom, Erik Anderson, Lasse Koivu and Jan Nordqvist.
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Board of Directors and auditors

Board of Directors

C H A I R M A N

Lasse Koivu *
(b. 1943), B.Sc.(Econ.), managing 
director, Föreningen Konstsamfundet rf.
Member of the Board since 1991.
S H A R E S B 3 399

V I C E C H A I R M A N

Erkki Etola **
(b. 1945), M.SC.(Eng.), managing 
director, Oy Etola Ab. Member of the
Board since 1981.
S H A R E S A 1 841 676, B 992 462

Erik Anderson **
(s. 1943), LL.M., 
Member of the Board since 2001.
S H A R E S B 5 650

Eva Liljeblom **
(b. 1958), D.Sc.(Econ.), professor, 
Swedish School of Economics and 
Business Administration. Member 
of the Board since 2000.
S H A R E S A 243, B 1 613

Kari Niemistö *
(b. 1962), M.Sc.(Econ.), managing 
director, Selective Investor Oy Ab. 
Member of the Board since 1998.
S H A R E S A 2 486 022, B 1 090 697

Christoffer Taxell *
(b. 1948), LL.M., ministeri1.
Member of the Board since 1985.
S H A R E S A 2 250, B 2 838

Henry Wiklund *
(b. 1948), kamarineuvos1, managing direc-
tor, Svenska litteratursällskapet i Finland
rf. Member of the Board since 1993.
S H A R E S A 720, B 2 690

Personnel representatives on the
Board April 1, 2003 – March 31, 2004

At meetings of the Board of Directors,
personnel representatives have the right
to attend and to speak. They are not
members of the Board of Directors.

Jan Nordqvist 
(b. 1969), M.SC.(Econ.), system manager,

financial administration. Personnel 
representative on the Board, elected by
Stockmann’s senior salaried employees.

Lea Musone 
(b. 1942), salesperson, Itäkeskus depart-
ment store. Personnel representative on
the Board, elected by the employee
represantatives of the Group Council.

Auditors

Wilhelm Holmberg 
(b. 1950), M.Sc.(Econ.), Authorized 
Public Accountant. Stockmann’s regular
auditor since 2000.

Henrik Holmbom 
(b. 1970), M.Sc.(Econ.), Authorized 
Public Accountant. Stockmann’s regular
auditor since 2003.

D E P U T Y A U D I T O R

KPMG Wideri Oy Ab

1 a Finnish title
* Independent of the company
** Independent of the company and major shareholders.

Information on the main job experience of members of the Board of 
Directors and their principal positions of trust is available on Stockmann's 
website at the address www.stockmann.fi.



The members of the Management Committee. From the left, Henri Bucht, Jukka Hienonen, 
Heikki Väänänen, Esa Mäkinen, Hannu Penttilä, Pekka Vähähyyppä and Jukka Naulapää.

C O R P O R AT E M A N A G E M E N T • S T O C K M A N N 11

Corporate management

Management Committee

Hannu Penttilä 
(b. 1953), LL.M., CEO.
S H A R E S A 105, B 124
O P T I O N S 2000: 150 000

Henri Bucht 
(b. 1951), M.Sc.(Econ.),
executive vice president with responsi-
bility for the Hobby Hall Division.
S H A R E S A 60, B 45
O P T I O N S 2000: 100 000

Jukka Hienonen 
(b. 1961), M.Sc.(Econ.), 
executive vice president with 
responsibility for the Department 
Store Division.
S H A R E S A 1 600, B 4 500
O P T I O N S 2000: 100 000

Pekka Vähähyyppä 
(b. 1960), M.Sc.(Econ.), CFO. 
S H A R E S B 1 000
O P T I O N S 2000: 80 000

Esa Mäkinen 
(b. 1959), M.Sc.(Econ.), 
director, Vehicle Division. 
O P T I O N S 2000: 80 000

Heikki Väänänen 
(b. 1958), M.Sc. (Econ.), 
managing director, Seppälä Oy. 
S H A R E S B 2000
O P T I O N S 2000: 80 000

Jukka Naulapää 
(b. 1966), LL.M., 
company lawyer, secretary to 
the Management Committee.
O P T I O N S 2000: 20 000

The Stockmann plc shares and options 

in the personal ownership of the members

of the Board of Directors and Manage-

ment Committee as well as in the owner-

ship of institutions under their control 

and persons under their guardianship at

December 31, 2003, are reported exclusive

of the 1999 Loyal Customer options, a to-

tal number of 973 of which were in the

ownership of the members of the Board

and a total number of 626 in the owner-

ship of the members of the Management

Committee. Information on Stockmann plc

shares and options on page 44 of the An-

nual Report.
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Stockmann staffers at a morning briefing in the department store in the Itäkeskus Shopping Centre. 



he Department Store Division’s sales inclusive of VAT were EUR
851.3 million, up 5 per cent on the previous year. The division had
net turnover of EUR 713.2 million and posted operating profit of

EUR 39.7 million.
Sales by the department stores in Finland and the Academic Bookstores

were EUR 700.5 million, an increase of EUR 19.6 million, or 3 per cent. The
strongest growth at the annual level (+ 22 per cent) was racked up by the
department store in Oulu. Sales by the International Operations units
grew by 10 per cent to EUR 134.4 million, rising to 16 per cent of the en-
tire Department Store Division’s sales. The dollar-denominated sales
growth in Russia was 16 per cent and the growth in kroons in Estonia was
1 per cent.  During the year the exchange rate of the dollar weakened by
20 per cent. Consequently, the euro-denominated sales growth in Russia
diminished by 5 per cent compared with the previous year.

The measures to improve the gross margin are moving ahead and the
division’s average gross margin rose to 40.2 per cent. By means of judi-
cious stock management, price reductions remained moderate and the di-
vision was able to improve purchase conditions by placing orders with a
carefully culled group of key suppliers. Changes in foreign exchange rates
were hedged primarily through the company’s internal forward contracts
and if necessary also through external hedging. This made it possible to
dampen the effects of a depreciating dollar on earnings from Internation-
al Operations. Nonetheless, the fall in the exchange rate of the dollar, es-
pecially in the last quarter, meant that the earnings generated by Interna-
tional Operations fell short of the forecast figure.   �
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Department Store Division

The department stores’ 
internationalization shifts into high gear

Stockmann’s department stores in the centre of Helsinki and in the Itäkeskus

Shopping Centre in eastern Helsinki, Tapiola in Espoo, Oulu, Tampere and Turku along with

five Academic Bookstores offer customers a knowledgeable shopping environment

and excellent service in a congenial atmosphere. The key to Stockmann’s success is a unique

and broad assortment of good products at competitive prices. The International Operations

units comprise department stores in Moscow, Tallinn and Riga together with the speciality

stores in Moscow and St Petersburg. New expanding chains are the cosmetics chain Stock-

mann Beauty as well as Zara in Finland and Russia.
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Measuring service and 
rewarding achievement
Salary expenses are a service depart-
ment store’s biggest cost item, but in-
puts into top-flight service should be
viewed more as an investment than an
expense. From the customer’s perspec-
tive, the quality that is experienced in
the service event is one of the key crite-
ria for choosing a place to go shopping.
A personal service quality assessment
system was introduced for the sales
staff in 2003. It provides a means of
guiding the development of profession-
al skill in the desired direction and en-
courages high achievers to serve as an
example to others. Further measures
were taken to improve job productivity,
and new methods were developed for
measuring the quality of customer ser-
vice. Well over 90 per cent of the De-
partment Store Division’s personnel are
covered by specific bonus systems.
Concurrently, Stockmann has neverthe-
less managed to keep the growth in
salary and other expenses smaller than
the rise in gross margin. This has en-
abled the department stores in Finland
to improve their earnings level further.

It is estimated that it will become
more difficult to obtain staff who work
in the service professions in growth
centres and the largest cities as baby-
boomers leave the labour market over
the next few years. The department
store trade is a highly labour-intensive
form of retailing, in which long opening
hours and shopping that is done large-
ly in the evenings and at the weekend

make obtaining high-calibre labour a
challenging task. Because nearly two
thirds of the Stockmann department
stores’ labour is part time, recruitment
– especially amongst students – is of
prime importance. Thanks to a large
group of applicants, the division has
succeeded in ensuring the high calibre
of its employees and seeing to it that
they are motivated to carry out de-
manding customer service work. One of
the main factors that are monitored is
the company’s attractiveness on the
labour market. According to the Uni-
versum Graduate Survey that is con-
ducted annually amongst commercial
studies students, in 2003 Stockmann
was the most attractive employer in the
retail field in Finland. The survey cov-
ered a total of more than 130 compa-
nies, and Stockmann ranked 7th. Main-
taining and developing a good employ-
er image is one of the most central cri-
teria for ensuring that a company meets
its recruitment needs successfully.

The consumer values quality
Against a backdrop of moderate growth
in Finland, a few merchandise areas re-
ported a buoyant and gratifying sales
trend. Consumer electronics sales grew
all across Finland at a faster rate than
the rest of the retail sector, and Stock-
mann’s sales were in line with this trend
too. Cosmetics and groceries were oth-
er merchandise areas that outpaced the
retail trade as a whole. The media and
numerous surveys have pointed to in-
creased consumption demand amongst

youth, and this was apparent in a num-
ber of product categories in the depart-
ment stores. Consumers appear to be
attracted increasingly to higher priced
and quality products.

Stockmann has expanded its empha-
sis on its own private label products,
which are growing at a faster rate than
other retail categories. Cap Horn, Glo-
bal, STC, Bodyguard, Bogi and Casa
Stockmann are good examples of prod-
ucts that are available only from Stock-
mann. The development of new con-
cepts is another important part of suc-
cessful department store operations.
Customers are made aware of the in-
troduction of the new One Way, the
men’s casual slacks concept and the
new Children’s World throughout the
entire department store chain.

Co-operation with suppliers of mer-
chandise has been fine-tuned so that
demand data can be relayed from the
cash register across the entire manu-
facturing chain faster than ever before.
The amount of manual work and errors
has been reduced by means of auto-
matic restocking and by allocating the
bulk of merchandise invoices directly to
delivery lots. Co-operation with suppli-
ers is aided by a key supplier system al-
lowing both parties to give regular writ-
ten assessments of each other’s per-
formance and to suggest areas for im-
provement in the following year.

Up-front expansion costs
Stockmann has long experience in its
line of business and the company’s earn-

At the "Politicians’ cook-out at Stockmann’s", forty-odd MP candidates from different parties showed their 
skills at the Stockmann department stores in Finland before the parliamentary elections. From the left, Antti Kalliomäki
(The Social Democratic Party) and Ville Itälä (The National Coalition Party) enjoying themselves, flanked on the right by an
attentive and busy Jan-Erik Enestam (The Swedish People’s Party).

The new Exclusive magazine for 
Stockmann’s Exclusive Loyal Customers 
comes out four times a year in both 
a Finnish and a Swedish language version.
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ings record proves its ability to replicate
its competence, not only in Finland but
also in the Baltic countries and Russia. In
retailing, opening new units always
means up-front costs. The operational
result in the new units opened during
the year has been in the red. All the well-
established units both in Finland and
abroad turned an operating profit.

When the profitability of the core
business is good but at the same time
growth prospects are fairly limited, the
cornerstone of the company’s strategy
must be to find businesses that can
grow and, after a short input phase,
generate earnings in the long term.
These investments in the future are es-
sential in order for the company to be
able to retain its vitality and to hold its
own in the face of ever-keener compe-
tition in the retail trade.

During 2003 it was decided to invest
in four major department store pro-
jects. In Finland a final lease agreement
was signed for opening an approxi-
mately 10 000 square metre department
store in Vantaa in the new section of
the Jumbo Shopping Centre, which is
scheduled for opening in 2006 at the
latest. In Helsinki, preparations moved
ahead for launching the construction
works for the main department store’s
"All-time Stockmann" project during
2004. The project will comprise, among
other things, about 10 000 square me-
tres of new retail space, a new car-park,
an underground logistics tunnel, mod-
ern goods handling areas, a new restau-
rant world as well as refurbished staff

social facilities. The cost estimate for
the project is EUR 115 million and it is
scheduled for completion during 2008.

Russia is Europe’s biggest
growth market
The economic environment in Russia has
continued to develop in a positive direc-
tion. During 2003 Stockmann made big
strides on the way towards achieving its
strategic objective of becoming the
country’s leading company in the de-
partment store sector. Stockmann sign-
ed final lease agreements for building
two new department stores in Moscow
as part of the Mega Shopping Centres
established by IKEA. Both department
store units will have about 10 000 square
metres of retail space and they will be
completed during 2004. By this date,
there will be three full-scale Stockmann
department stores in Moscow, with a to-
tal staff of over 1 500 employees and es-
timated full-year sales of about EUR 160
million. Moscow’s population of over 10
million people and its growing dispo-
sable income offer the potential for es-
tablishing several more department sto-
re units there over the next few years.
Business operations in these units will be
run by Stockmann’s wholly-owned sub-
sidiaries. Significantly, the company will
be able to tap into the human resources
capital that is built up in a business envi-
ronment that can be difficult from time to
time. A further indication that Stock-
mann’s know-how in the Russian market
has gained a good reputation is that
Spain's Inditex Group has chosen the

company as its franchising partner in
carrying out the expansion of the Zara
chain into Russia. The country’s first
Zara store began operations in the Mega
Shopping Centre in Moscow in Febru-
ary 2003 and building out of the chain of
stores will continue during 2004 with 2
to 3 new stores.

A stabilizing business environment,
more straightforward tax regulations
and Russia’s imminent membership of
the World Trade Organization mean sub-
stantial earnings potential from the
standpoint of Stockmann’s business op-
erations. A track record of fourteen years
of uninterrupted operations in Russia
have given Stockmann a lead that com-
petitors can catch up with only if they
are ready to undertake onerous up-front
investments and make heavy outlays on
marketing. In the department store field,
there are no evident players who appear
willing to embark on ventures in the
Russian business environment.

Local retail know-how is developing
rapidly in Russia, and certain interna-
tional speciality store and hypermarket
chains also have ambitious Russia strate-
gies. Nonetheless, in Moscow, for exam-
ple, there is retail sales space of only 0.1
square metre per resident, which falls
considerably below even the average for
the new EU accession countries. This is
a clear indication that Russia is consid-
ered an exceptionally difficult business
environment. It is an area where practi-
cal operations still run up against a num-
ber of surprising difficulties and profits
come only by dint of a long-term com-

The growth in Crazy Days sales year after year is customary by now. Nonetheless,
the runaway success of the Crazy Days in autumn 2003 came as a surprise.

Paris came to Stockmann’s in September. 
An impressive L’amour & Paris campaign 
was carried out in conjunction with the famous
Parisian Galleries Lafayette department store.
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mitment and the efforts of a staff who
have a firm grasp of the special features
of this business environment. The big-
gest bottleneck has been the problem of
finding sites where it would be possible
to carry on profitable operations in
changing conditions. In practice, diffi-
culties have also been encountered in
implementing projects, as Stockmann
found out, for instance, when the pend-
ing department store project in St Pe-
tersburg fell through.

In Estonia, sizeable investments in
the retail trade have continued and the
country’s liberal economic policy has
resulted in a low investment threshold.
In Tallinn, retail space is anticipated to
exceed one square metre per inhabitant
during 2004. As a ratio of disposable
income, the figure is disproportionate-
ly high and reflects the wishful opti-
mism stemming from Estonia’s mem-
bership of the EU that will take place in
May 2004. In the present conditions,
very many of the companies operating
in the retail trade in Tallinn do not have
the wherewithal to operate profitably.

In Latvia, the retail market has not yet
reached the same stage of development
as in Estonia. Although quite a few new
shopping centres have sprung up in re-
cent years, in Riga the square metres of
retail space per resident is only a frac-
tion of the figure for Tallinn. Further-
more, customers' consumer behaviour
is still in the formative stage. Tellingly, a
market for branded goods has not yet
come into being to a similar extent. 

All the department 
stores in Finland earn an
environmental certificate
The preparatory work which the De-
partment Store Division launched in
2001 with the aim of gaining an envi-
ronmental certificate reached its goal
during 2003, when all Stockmann’s de-
partment stores in Finland were certi-
fied in accordance with the internation-
al ISO 14001 standard. The objective
was to create a set of benchmarks for
the entire chain along with methods for
reducing needless environmental load-
ing in department store operations. Ac-
tivities are centred on minimizing ener-
gy consumption and waste output. The
first results of measurements indicate
that mainly through improved ways of
operating the department stores have
succeeded in reducing energy con-
sumption by nearly 10 per cent, whilst
cutting the volume of waste significant-
ly. By directing attention to these fac-
tors, right after its launch the system
has brought incontestable positive
business and ecological results that are
encouraging in view of further devel-
opment of these activities.

Stockmann thrives 
on Loyal Customers
During 2003 the number of Stock-
mann’s Loyal Customers rose to nearly
950 000. The relatively fastest growth
was registered in the new market areas
in the Baltic countries and Russia,
where more than 150 000 Loyal Cus-

tomers have already made Stockmann
the place where they do their shopping.
In Finland, the ratio of Loyal Customers
to the country’s population is one of the
highest recorded for similar customer
loyalty systems worldwide.  The pro-
portion of purchases registered by Loy-
al Customers has already reached about
60 per cent of the department stores’
aggregate sales and it is growing even-
ly year after year. For a couple of years
now, the card of the most loyal cus-
tomers of all has been the platinum-
coloured Stockmann Exclusive (so far in
use only in Finland). This group is pam-
pered with benefits such as their own
customer magazine and Exclusive
shopping days twice a year, when they
receive a 10 per cent discount on near-
ly the entire product assortment in the
department store. This has been an in-
centive for customers to bundle their
one-time purchases together during
these Exclusive days – which was the
objective when the system was origin-
ally planned.

Profitable growth
In the last decade, Stockmann’s De-
partment Store Division was able to in-
crease its volume of business by a fac-
tor of 2.5. In the mature department sto-
re markets in Europe and North Ameri-
ca, this is exceptional given the general
trend in the sector. Of the member com-
panies that report their sales to IADS,
the international umbrella organization
in the department store sector, Stock-

Sweden’s Crown Princess Victoria paid a visit to the Academic Bookstore 
in August. As the princess admired the ambience of the largest bookstore in 
the Nordic countries, she was escorted by Stockmann’s CEO Hannu Penttilä 
and Stig-Björn Nyberg, the director of Academic Bookstore.

With the opening of an Alko in the Tapiola department
store, the services of all Stockmann’s department stores
now include a wines and spirits shop. A Stockmann account
card can also be used to pay for purchases at Alko shops.
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mann ranked highest in terms of
growth during the past decade. The di-
vision has set the objective of achieving
sales growth of the same magnitude
during the current decade. This will
mean energetic establishment of new
stores, above all in Russia.

The trend in the breakdown of the
Department Store Division’s sales and
earnings by 2007 is expected to be that
a third of the division’s aggregate sales
and earnings is generated by Interna-
tional Operations. Growth will make
possible better purchasing terms and
the ability to spread overhead over a
greater number of units, thus creating a
basis for improved profitability. The
biggest question mark for implement-
ing this strategy is the overall develop-
ment of the Russian economy, which at
present nevertheless appears more sta-
ble than at any time during the coun-
try’s short history as a market economy.

Outlook for 2004
The inputs made in 2003 to reach a high-
er volume of operations (opening of the
Riga department store, expansions of the
Zara and Beauty chains) have burdened
earnings in the short term. Because the
result of department store operations in
Finland is healthy and cash flow is
strongly positive, Stockmann is well
placed to continue improving its prof-
itability further.

During 2004, two new 10 000 square
metre Stockmann department stores
will be opened in Moscow in the Mega

Shopping Centres built for IKEA. Plans
call for expanding the Zara chain in
Russia by adding 2-3 new stores during
2004. The lease on the Smolenskaya de-
partment store in Moscow, which has
been in operation for five years, was
changed to a turnover-linked basis be-
ginning in November 2003. It is esti-
mated that this will improve its earn-
ings significantly in 2004.

Sales by Finland’s retailers are esti-
mated to grow by about 2 per cent in
2004. Sales by Stockmann’s Department
Store Division are set to top this slight-
ly. With retail sales space remaining at
the previous year’s level, considerable
sales growth in Finland is not expected.
Thanks to continuous improvement of
operational efficiency, the result of op-
erations in Finland is nevertheless ex-
pected to show further, albeit moder-
ate, improvement.

The earnings trend of International Op-
erations is crucially dependent on the
success achieved in starting up new units
as well as on the trend in foreign ex-
change rates in the target countries. As
from January 2004, pricing in dollars has
been dropped in Russia and Stockmann
has gone over to using the rouble – which
has recently seen a stabilization of its ex-
change rate – as its pricing currency. 

The operating profit of the Depart-
ment Store Division as a whole is esti-
mated to continue its growth in 2004. �

41.5%  Helsinki department store

43.0%  Other units in Finland

10.0%  Russia

  5.0%  Estonia

  0.5%  Latvia

Distribution of the Department
Store Division's sales by unit 2003

45%  Fashion

22%  Food

12%  Leisure

11%  Home

10%  Books, publications, stationery

Distribution of the Department
Store Division's sales by sector 2003

The children’s fashion show in August was fun for spectators. All Stockmann department stores in Finland received 
an ISO 14001 environmental certificate during 2003.
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A pre-servicing inspection at the Vehicle Division’s outlet in Pitäjänmäki. 
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Vehicle Division

A year of growth and adjustment

Stockmann’s Vehicle Division serves its customers at eleven sales outlets in

the Helsinki metropolitan area, acting as a dealer for Audi, Ford and Volkswagen.

In the Turku economic area the Vehicle Division operates a Ford dealership and

in Tampere it has a Skoda dealership. The Vehicle Division’s strengths are an organi-

zation staffed by service-minded professionals, high-quality products and versatile

services. The division’s success is based on reliable operations and good customer

relationships that have been built up over the years.

he lowered tax on new cars that has been expected for a number of
years set the tone for the market in 2003. Prices of new cars fell on
average by 7 per cent, and 147 405 new cars were registered, the

fourth highest figure in Finland’s history. Growth compared with 2002 was
26 per cent. Similarly, the reform of the tax structure for used vehicles that
are imported raised their imports to a new level. According to customs docu-
ments, 33 158 used cars were imported, compared with 4 629 a year earlier.
The importation of used vehicles centred on older cars and vans, with ten-
year and older vehicles accounting for about 80 per cent of the figure. Ac-
cordingly, the impact of these imports on sales of new vehicles was fairly mi-
nor. The total market for vans remained at the customary level. The number
of new vans registered was 12 752, down 0.1 per cent on 2002.

The clientele outside the Helsinki metropolitan area consists mainly of
private persons, and it was this segment of the car market that showed the
strongest growth. In the Helsinki metropolitan area, total car registrations
were up 21.5 per cent, whereas registrations of company cars grew by a
more modest 16 per cent. The growth in registrations by private car buy-
ers reached 27 per cent. Apart from the tax cut, low interest rates acted as
a further spur to purchase decisions.

The Vehicle Division had sales of EUR 480.4 million, representing growth
on the previous year of EUR 81.5 million, or 20 per cent. The division’s net
turnover was EUR 394.5 million, compared with EUR 328.3 million a year
earlier. The return on capital employed in 2003 was 13.2 per cent and op-
erating profit was EUR 5.6 million, the best in the division’s history. In 2002
the return on capital employed was 13.5 per cent and operating profit was
EUR 5.4 million.

With its market share of 24 per cent, Stockmann’s Vehicle Division re-
tained its position as the clear market leader in the Helsinki metro-

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

Operating profit

20032002200120001999

EUR mill.

% of net turnover

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

%

Development of the Vehicle Division's
operating profit 1999-2003

0

100

200

300

400

500

20032002200120001999

EUR mill.

Development of the Vehicle Division's
sales 1999-2003

Key figures

�

T

ˇ



20 S T O C K M A N N • V E H I C L E D I V I S I O N

politan area. In Turku, Ford was the sec-
ond best-selling make of vehicle in the
area. The market share of Ford cars in
Turku was 9.6 per cent and 10.5 per cent
in vans, the corresponding figures for
2002 being 9.1 per cent and 8.8 per cent.
In Tampere, Skoda’s market share grew
from 1.8 per cent a year ago to 2.5 per
cent. At the beginning of October, the
Tampere outlet wound up its selling op-
erations for Mitsubishi vehicles, but will
continue to operate a servicing and re-
pair shop for the marque.

The Vehicle Division delivered a total
of 11 333 new vehicles, up 26.4 per cent
on 2002. The number of trade-in vehicles
sold was 9 327, up 16.6 per cent on the
previous year. The Volkswagen product
line delivered 4 965 new vehicles and in-
creased its sales by 39.7 per cent. Deliv-
eries of vehicles in the Ford product line
totalled 4 928, up 13.9 per cent on 2002,
which made Stockmann the largest Ford
dealership in the Northern countries.
For the first time, the Audi product line
topped the one thousand new car mark.
Sales reached 1 140 vehicles and in-
creased by 39.2 per cent. The Tampere
dealership for the Skoda-Mitsubishi
product line boosted its sales of new ve-
hicles by 53.8 per cent and delivered 300
new vehicles. 

The biggest challenge in developing
profitability were the large inventories
of new vehicles along with the slow-
down in sales of trade-in vehicles to-
wards the end of the year, resulting in in-
creased inventories of trade-in vehicles.

Because the growth in demand for
cars in the Ford product line did not
come up to expectations, the stock of

new cars ordered in advance resulted in
additional costs. Lowered taxes on new
vehicles led to booking losses due to
lowering the prices of showroom vehi-
cles and fairly new trade-in vehicles that
were purchased in deals made towards
the end of 2002. Despite the tax cut,
Stockmann guaranteed that customers
were credited for the original price of a
trade-in vehicle.

Sweeping changes 
in the motor trade
At the beginning of October, the motor
trade saw the entry into force of new
dealership agreements prescribing that
authorized dealers must take steps to ad-
just and comply with the standards re-
quired. These requirements stem from
the EU’s new Block Exemption, which
seeks to remove competition restrictions
in the motor trade stage by stage.

With the entry into force of the new
regulation, previously permitted sales
territory boundaries will be eliminated,
enabling active marketing to be carried
on in a wider area. In respect of servi-
cing, the new dealership agreements dif-
fer from the old ones in that they are no
longer associated with selling a specific
make of vehicle. Instead, new vehicles
can be sold without servicing commit-
ments and vice versa. This ushers in a
new competitive situation within servi-
cing and spare part sales, because it al-
lows new businesses to enter the market.
These entrepreneurs must nevertheless
meet tight criteria for both knowledge
and skills as well as quality in order to be
able to operate as authorized service
centres for a given make of vehicle. Since

the capital expenditures are fairly large,
the real effects of deregulation in this re-
spect will not be apparent until some
years in the future.

Efficiency is all-important
The Vehicle Division’s objective in 2003
was to improve efficiency both by lifting
vehicle sales at each site and through
higher servicing revenue. Sales of new
and trade-in vehicles did increase at all
outlets, with like-for-like sales of servi-
cing procedures up about 6 per cent.

A further goal is to be able to meet the
growth for servicing demand in step
with an ever-growing vehicle market.
The project to expand servicing capaci-
ty at the Turku dealership was comple-
ted during the year, at the same time
making it possible to move the body
shop to the expanded site in Turku. At
the facility in Helsinki’s Pitäjänmäki dis-
trict, the area’s entire body shop and
paint shop functions were centralized at
the Takkatie location. Concurrently, the
servicing capacity of the Kutomotie site
was beefed up.

Close cooperation with the
Department Store Division
In 2003 the Vehicle Division increased
further its cooperation with the Depart-
ment Store Division. Eight Loyal Cus-
tomer campaigns for new vehicles were
run during the year. In addition, the Ve-
hicle Division participated successfully in
both the spring and autumn Exclusive
Loyal Customer days and in the Crazy
Days. There were three trade-in vehicle
campaigns targeted at Stockmann’s Loy-
al Customers during the year and six af-

The versatile Ford Focus C-MAX combines the driving comfort 
of a conventional car with the design and modifiability of an MPV.

The legendary Volkswagen Golf is now completely new, 
roomier and more striking than ever.

ˇ

ˇ
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ter-sales campaigns featuring offers of
servicing, tyres and supplies.

No-hassle customer service
The Vehicle Division operates at eleven
sales outlets in the Helsinki metropolitan
area. In 2003, the division saw to com-
pletion a development project aiming at
improving customer service and result-
ing in replacing five different telephone
exchange numbers with a single num-
ber. In addition, the division introduced
an electronic service booking calendar
that aids in optimizing the use of servi-
cing capacity at the various outlets.

The Vehicle Division’s new website
that was in use during 2003 proved to be
a big step forward in the area of elec-
tronic communications. The Vehicle Di-
vision’s Internet pages at the address
www.stockmann.fi became an important
channel for get-in-touch requests from
customers interested in buying a vehicle
or having it serviced. Over 6 000 elec-
tronic messages came in to vehicle sales
staff in 2003. The number of servicing
time reservations that came in through
the website also grew significantly.

Outlook for 2004
The motor trade is forecasting a total
market of about 145 000 new cars in
2004. Aggregate sales of vans are esti-
mated to be about 13 000 vehicles. The
market is thus estimated to come in at
nearly the level seen in 2003. Dealers
face a hard challenge owing to the far
greater inventories of trade-in vehicles
at the beginning of the year compared
with 2003, a result of the high volume of
new vehicles delivered up to the end of

2003. Continued brisk imports of used
cars and vans has also jacked up the
supply on the market. The biggest fac-
tors will nevertheless be the level of in-
terest rates, economic growth and the
employment situation.

At Suomenoja in Espoo, construction
works for converting the Martinkuja
servicing centre into an Audi showroom
were started in the summer 2003. This
will be Finland’s first full-service car
dealership that has been designed in ac-
cordance with the recommendations of
the Audi plant. The Audi showroom is
scheduled for completion by summer
2004. Owing to the construction work,
the Martinkuja servicing centre was dis-
continued in August. The investment will
contribute to developing the Volkswa-
gen functions in Espoo area at the Meri-
tuuli outlet. Stockmann has made an
agreement with VV-Auto Oy, which is
owned by Kesko Corporation, on termi-
nation of the lease agreement for the
VW-Audi car dealership in Helsinki’s
Herttoniemi district by December 31,
2004 at the latest. The parties are negoti-
ating on a possible sale of business op-
erations by the end of August 2004.

In 2004 the Vehicle Division will tap
into the potential of the new Block Ex-
emption, particularly within servicing
operations, where it will be possible to
use the expertise of professionally
skilled staff for a wider range of mar-
ques. The Vehicle Division is seeking to
leverage the additional possibilities
brought by recent and future invest-
ments and to step up the employment of
capital in all areas. The main objective
for 2004 is to improve the return on cap-

43.7%  Volkswagen

43.5%  Ford

10.1%  Audi

  2.4%  Skoda

  0.3%  Mitsubishi

Distribution of the Vehicle Division's
sales by make 2003

64%  New vehicles

23%  Trade-in vehicles

13%  Service functions

Distribution of the
Vehicle Division's sales 2003

The sporty new Audi A3. Three levels of standard equipment 
– Attraction, Ambition and Ambiente – provide guaranteed individuality.

Skoda sales grew strongly in Finland in 2003. 
The best-selling Skoda model is the Octavia.

ital employed. It is estimated that oper-
ating profit will come in at least at the
level registered in 2003.   �

ˇ
ˇ
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A Hobby Hall team preparing to have a set of duvet covers photographed for a catalogue.



H O B B Y H A L L • S T O C K M A N N 23

Hobby Hall

0

50

100

150

200

250

20032002200120001999

EUR mill.

Development of Hobby Hall's
sales 1999-2003

-4

-2

0

2

4

6

8

10

Operating profit

20032002200120001999

EUR mill.

% of net turnover

-4

-2

0

2

4

6

8

10

%

Development of Hobby Hall's 
operating profit 1999-2003

he Hobby Hall Division’s sales totalled EUR 235.7 million, on a par
with the figure a year earlier. Net turnover was EUR 197.3 million.
The volume of packages dispatched to customers was 2.6 million,

an increase of 5.6 per cent on the previous year.
The division’s operating result, EUR 3.4 million, was markedly short of

the target and the previous year’s figure.
The main reasons that the Hobby Hall Division’s operating result was

in the red were the weakening in the gross margin compared with the
previous year, the non-recurrent costs of discontinuing stores and sales
that fell clearly short of target. The factors behind the weaker gross mar-
gin were the exceptionally large wastage amounts that were booked in
2003, the non-recurring writedowns that were made on stocks as well as
the fall in the relative margin on commercial operations.

The result on operations was unsatisfactory, especially in the Baltic
countries, where earnings were furthermore burdened by the start-up of
operations in Lithuania in 2003.

The cost savings programme that was launched in autumn 2002 was
carried out during the year in accordance with plans. Thanks to good
cost control, the division’s costs were at the previous year’s level, though
they now also included the functions of a new market area, Lithuania.

Internet sales gain a larger share of the market
Measured in terms of package volumes, Finland’s total distance retail
market grew by 2.4 per cent on 2002, but nevertheless was 5.1 per cent
below the level reached in 2001.

The shakeout in Finland’s overall distance retail market continued in
the manner forecast, with online stores gaining a substantially greater
share of the market. It is believed that the trend in distance retailing vol-
umes will be stable over the next few years and that online stores will
continue to gain a greater slice of the market.

In Estonia, the overall distance retail market shrank further as competi-
tion hotted up and other retail offerings increased significantly.

Hobby Hall is focusing on distance 
retailing and boosting operational efficiency

Distance retailer Hobby Hall markets products and services to its customers

via catalogues, an online store and its own stores. Its assortment consists primarily

of household and leisure articles. The market leader in Finland, Estonia, Latvia

and Lithuania offers its more than 1.3 million customers an easy, reliable and pleasant

alternative for buying quality products at affordable prices.

Key figures

�
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The uncontested market 
leader in Finland
Hobby Hall’s sales in Finland were
EUR 192.3 million, down 2 per cent on
the figure a year earlier. Hobby Hall re-
tained its position as the uncontested
market leader in distance retailing in
Finland.

The best-selling product areas were
interior decorating, furniture and
household goods, whereas sales of
home appliances showed the biggest
drop compared with last year.

The sales appeal and offerings of the
nationwide catalogues that reach every
home were developed, and they ex-
ceeded both the previous year’s sales
figure and the targets that had been set.
By contrast, the smaller price-driven
catalogues were an outright disap-
pointment all year long. Owing to the
effect of an increase in competing mar-
keting communications and offerings,
the life cycle of mail order catalogues
has generally been growing shorter for
a couple of years now. The catalogues
are aiming to realize a process of con-
tinuous development so that in future
years too they will be able to offer cus-
tomers the most attractive alternative
on the market in each product group:
to make good selections together with
the customer.

During the best days of the Christmas
sales period, over 9000 calls came in to
the Hobby Hall customer centres in
Helsinki and Kuopio. Thanks to im-
proved work shift planning, the re-
sponse times shortened and the number
of unanswered calls dropped further.

The volume of orders placed via the
Internet grew strongly and was EUR
32.7 million, up 34 per cent on the fig-
ure a year ago. The online store ac-

counted for 17 per cent of Hobby Hall’s
sales in Finland and 22 per cent of
Finland’s distance retail trade. Growth
was spurred by a further increase in
the number of customers: during the
year more than 160 000 purchasing
customers visited the online store. The
online store and new electronic com-
mercial solutions will also be developed
and marketed in the future as part of
the Hobby Hall Division’s range of dis-
tance retail offerings.

Aggregate sales of the Hobby Hall
Division’s stores in Finland were EUR
41.7 million, down 4 per cent on the
previous year. The closing of the store
in Helsinki’s Herttoniemi district in
September was one of the factors
causing the drop in sales. In-store sales
accounted for 22 per cent of the Hobby
Hall Division’s sales in Finland. 

Drop in sales in Estonia
The Hobby Hall Division’s sales in
Estonia totalled EUR 23.1 million,
falling 11 per cent short of the previous
year’s sales. Faced with a further sharp
drop in Estonia’s total distance retail
market, Hobby Hall nevertheless re-
tained its position as the market leader.

The volume of orders placed over the
Internet grew by 55 per cent in Estonia,
but so far they account for a fairly mod-
est share of aggregate sales: 5 per cent.

In-store sales growth in Estonia was
15 per cent, representing 19 per cent of
aggregate sales.

Change in the structure 
of sales in Latvia
Sales for the third full year of opera-
tions in Latvia were EUR 14.6 million,
down 4 per cent on the previous year.
The drop contrasts with the positive

trend in package volumes, which grew
by 24 per cent on the figure a year ago. 

The structural change in sales was
due mainly to Hobby Hall’s tighter cred-
it policy, especially for new customers,
and to changes in the product mix of-
fered in catalogues. Hobby Hall main-
tained its position as the market leader
in Latvia’s distance retail trade too.

The result of operations in Latvia
was burdened by high postal charges
and heavy credit losses that piled up
well into the first months of the year.

Mail order sales get
under way in Lithuania
Hobby Hall’s operations in Lithuania
got under way in February 2003 with a
nationwide customer acquisition cata-
logue and supporting television adver-
tising. Sales in Lithuania amounted to
EUR 5.8 million, which was somewhat
short of the target. During the year
four catalogue campaigns covering the
whole country’s households were car-
ried out. The marketing focus was still
on increasing the number of cus-
tomers and on making distance retail-
ing known as a form of retailing. Total
offerings in this field are so far very
modest in Lithuania. In addition to a
call centre, Hobby Hall’s presence in
Vilnius consists of a small store spe-
cializing in selling returned products.

System revamp moves ahead
In the first phase of Hobby Hall’s large-
scale system development initiative,
two important information technology
system overhaul projects were carried
out in 2003 and the first part of 2004, in
accordance with plans. The new cus-
tomer management system will enable
Hobby Hall to target its marketing

A new customer management system and 
purchasing system will boost operational efficiency.

An illustrated e-mail letter is a new precisely 
targetable direct marketing tool.



23%  Electronics

21%  Household textiles

20%  Household appliances

10%  Garments

10%  Fitness and leisure

16%  Other

Distribution of Hobby Hall's sales
by merchandise sector 2003

82%  Finland

10%  Estonia

  6%  Latvia

  2%  Lithuania

Distribution of Hobby Hall's
sales by market 2003

80%  Distance retailing

20%  Stores

Distribution of Hobby Hall's
sales by channel 2003
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more effectively and facilitate the ana-
lysis and development of customer
profitability. The objective of the new
purchasing system is more efficient
product management, enabling an im-
proved degree of service whilst lower-
ing the warehousing and cost level sig-
nificantly. The capital expenditures
carried out for the system revamp to-
talled about EUR 1.3 million.

An integrated overhaul of customer
service systems will be carried out as
part of the next phase, which will take
place in 2004–2006.

Streamlining operations
In October it was decided that Hobby
Hall would launch a programme of
measures enabling the division to focus
more closely on distance retailing. It
was furthermore decided to step up dis-
tance retailing logistics and category
management significantly. The role of
the network of stores will be altered so
that it supports distance retailing. At the
same time, a decision was taken to wind
up the stores in Espoo, Tampere and the

centre of Tallinn in the first part of 2004.
The logistics and category manage-

ment for distance retailing will be ad-
justed in line with the changes of an
evolving business. The aim is to con-
solidate the warehousing functions in
the Viinikkala and Tammisto districts
of Vantaa at a single location within
the Viinikkala warehouse facility at the
beginning of 2005.

Measures connected with improving
anti-wastage and inventory balance
management were carried out as part
of the programme. The division’s oper-
ations were streamlined in accordance
with the decisions taken, and concur-
rently a number of changes were im-
plemented in areas of responsibility
and the organizational structure.

The objective of the programme of
measures is to improve profits by
about EUR 7.5–8.5 million at the annu-
al level. The measures will take effect
for the most part in 2004.

The winding up of stores resulted in
staff reductions of 46 employees in dif-
ferent functions in Finland and 7 em-

ployees in Estonia, some of whom were
part-time employees. 

Challenges in 2004
The paramount objective of the Hobby
Hall Division in 2004 is to achieve a sig-
nificant improvement in the operating
result and return on capital employed.

The high quality of customer service
will be boosted further. The aim is to be
for customers the best distance retail-
ing alternative in all Hobby Hall’s mar-
ket areas.

The profitability and cost-effectiveness
of operations will be improved in all
market areas in accordance with the pro-
gramme of measures that was launched
in October 2003. The phase-by-phase
upgrade of information systems will also
enhance the division’s commercial oper-
ations and cost-effectiveness.

Hobby Hall will carry out limited test
marketing in Russia in the first part of
2004.

It is estimated that the division’s op-
erating result will be in the black and
significantly better than in 2003. �

The familiar catalogue now has 
a new look and a bigger format.

Market leadership in Lithuania’s mail order sales is Hobby Hall’s newest 
breakthrough. Happy team members get together at the site in Vilnius.
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Seppälä’s product manager, designer and clothing pattern-maker setting out to design a fashion garment.
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Seppälä

Seppälä is Finland’s most extensive chain of fashion stores, with locations

throughout Finland. It offers apparel for women, men and children as well as

footwear and cosmetics. The stores are sited in prime commercial locations.

Centralized chain-store operations guarantee affordable prices together with

reliable quality. The entire collection is based on Seppälä’s own design. In addition

to 127stores in Finland, Seppälä has 13 stores in Estonia and 4 stores in Latvia.

Growth in sight in 
the Baltic countries and Russia
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operating profit 1999-2003

he Seppälä Division reported sales in 2003 of EUR 130.3 million, a
drop of 2 per cent on the figure a year earlier. Net turnover was
EUR 107.3 million. Women’s apparel continued to account for a

growing share of aggregate sales, whereas sales of children’s and men’s
clothing contracted. The number of customers increased on the previous
year, but the average purchase per customer diminished. Seppälä’s rela-
tive profitability is at a good level. In 2003 operating profit was EUR 10.1
million, or 9.4 per cent of the turnover.

Sales fell below last year’s level for several reasons. The competitive si-
tuation in the Finnish market tightened up owing to new hypermarkets and
the new stores opened by foreign chains. The changes to Seppälä’s network
of stores in Finland and Estonia had a negative impact on sales. Also cloth-
ing sales thrive or falter in step with the weather: the latter part of the spring
was particularly chilly and it too was a factor weakening the sales trend. Al-
though sales were rung up at a normal pace in the autumn, it was no
longer possible to offset the sales shortfall caused by the chilly spring.

Being nimble, being quick
Seppälä seeks continually to improve its ability to understand customers’
wishes and market trends. This is a demanding task because more and
more factors have a bearing on the operating environment and on con-
sumers’ readiness to buy clothes.

Ideally, customers must always be able to find something to buy in Sep-
pälä’s extensive collections, whether they are interested in the latest new
fashions or in good utility clothing. The challenge is to be more alert than
ever in responding to changes in fashion, the competitive situation and the
weather. More and more these days, customers are buying articles of cloth-
ing to wear right away. This steps up the tempo of supply and demand.

Key figures

T

�
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Seppälä’s ability to respond to chan-
ges in competitive factors and fashion
has been developed energetically, and
this emphasis will continue. The annual
flow of goods is some 13 million indi-
vidual products. Thanks to a good lo-
gistics system, products are in the right
places at the right time. The stores do
not have stocks of their own, but in-
stead they receive a basic assortment
in accordance with the store size, and
this is topped up in line with demand
and the central warehouse situation.
The stores receive both new products
and supplementary articles five days a
week. This operational model creates a
basis for chain operations in stores of
different sizes and in communities large
and small. The system furnishes infor-
mation on when it is necessary to pur-
chase goods at a quicker pace and when
caution needs to be observed.

Own collections
The sources of fashion are found in
life about us: on the street, in media, in
youth culture. Seppälä relies on its
own collection. Some fifty people are
engaged in designing and buying the
collection. Seppälä’s fashion comes in-
to being at textile and fashion fairs and
by keeping a close eye on garment in-
dustry trends and the world around
us. Seppälä must create fashion for its
customers: understand fashion phe-
nomena and be aware of the kind of
people who visit stores in the chain.
Seppälä makes clothes for its cus-
tomers’ needs.

The collection must also be renewed
structurally. Including new products in
the assortment whilst expanding old
product groups broadens and refreshes
Seppälä's assortment. These measures
also help Seppälä find new customers.
The assortment of young men’s clothes
was expanded in 2003. An important ex-
pansion move was the inclusion of a
shoe department in a number of stores.
The assortment of ladies’ tights was re-
newed and a teenage collection for girls
was created to supplement the children’s
and young people’s apparel line. 

Close to the customer
One of Seppälä’s main strengths is a
comprehensive network of 127 stores in
Finland. The stores are sited in central
commercial locations – where people are
on the move. Opening hours and the
service concept support shopping con-
venience.

In-store merchandising plays a central
role in Seppälä’s overall concept. The
task of visual marketing is to tell cus-
tomers in an interesting way what is
happening in the world of fashion and to
enrich the shopping ambience by high-
lighting the many dimensions of Sep-
pälä’s assortments in an attractive and
clearly-stated way.

Seppälä faces the challenging task of
keeping its extensive chain of stores ap-
pealing and on the pulse of the times. In
2003 eight stores moved into new premis-
es in Finland and additionally nine stores
were refurbished in accordance with Sep-
pälä’s modern light-toned and fresh look.

In addition to products, the store is an
important medium for communicating
the corporate image, and this will be a
development focus in the years ahead.
Revamping the store look was a major
initiative that was carried out across the
entire chain in autumn 2003. This was
manifested in the changing of pictures,
posters, price signs and shopping bags. 

In Finland three new stores were
opened and four were closed during the
year. It is unlikely that Seppälä will in-
crease the number of its stores further
in Finland, but will instead concentrate
on seeing to it that the stores are sited
in good commercial locations and are in
step with the times.

Thirteen stores in Estonia 
Seppälä is Estonia’s largest chain of
clothing stores. It had 13 stores in Esto-
nia at the turn of the year. The largest
store in Estonia, which was located in
Tallinn’s Viru Centre, was closed in
March 2003 due to the renovation of the
entire business and shopping centre.
The Viru Centre, including the Seppälä
store, will be reopened in spring 2004.

In Estonia, the clothing trade is large-
ly concentrated in a few big cities and
the shopping centres located in them.
Many new shopping centres have
sprung up in recent years, above all in
the Tallinn area. Their proliferation cre-
ates oversupply in view with the level of
disposable income. Because commer-
cial space is available, Seppälä moved
one of its stores into new premises at
the end of the year. Because Seppälä

The entire chain’s stores were 
given a new fashion magazine look 
in the autumn.

In October, Seppälä opened its fourth store in Riga 
in the Stockmann department store there.

Revitalizing assortments is essential
for successful retailing. During the
year, the assortment of ladies’ tights
was one of the articles renewed.
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has quite a good position in the Esto-
nian market, there is no need at the
present time to increase the number of
stores in Estonia, either.

The first stores in Latvia
A major element of Seppälä’s strategy is
to operate in all the Baltic countries. Af-
ter Estonia, the next natural step was to
move ahead in the Latvian market.

The first four stores were opened in
Riga in autumn 2003. The city’s eco-
nomic area is home to nearly a million
people. The structure of the retail trade
in the whole country and the capital
city are changing dramatically. Shop-
ping is moving away from market
squares and alleys to larger sites: the
first shopping centres were opened in
the 2000 decade. Seppälä’s stores are
located in the three largest shopping
centres in the city and as part of the
Stockmann department store. Sep-
pälä’s growth in Latvia will proceed
ahead as large shopping centres are
built. The focus will of course be on
Riga, but stores will also be established
in other cities.

Seppälä writes up its history
Towards the end of 2003, Seppälä pub-
lished the historical account Eteenpäin,
enemmän, paremmin – Seppälä, suoma-
lainen vaatettaja 1930-2003 ("Ahead,
More, Better – Seppälä, Finnish Cloth-
ier 1930-2003"). The book tells how Sep-
pälä has become a unique concept with-
in the Finnish clothing trade and fash-
ion, a part of daily Finnish life.

Well into the 1970s – when Seppälä
was on its way to establishing a nation-
wide presence – affordable, stylish dress-
ing that was in tune with fashion was not
an obvious approach. For seven deca-
des, Seppälä has in many respects been
a pioneer in retail and chain operations
in Finland. Own collections, own brands,
goods manufactured abroad and fran-
chising were all originally Seppälä-initi-
ated new ways of operating in the Fin-
nish retail clothing trade. Soon, Seppälä
went international. The manufacture of
clothing moved abroad in the 1970s, the
first store in Germany was opened in
1984, and in 1987 Seppälä tried its wings
in New York.

The guiding principle of the compa-
ny’s founder, Edvard Seppälä, is still the
spirit that is instilled in every Seppälä
employee: ahead, more and better. If a
business stands still, it will fall behind.

Russia up next
In 2004 Seppälä will enter the Russian
market. The first stores will be opened
in Moscow. With its population of al-
ready more than 10 million people,
Moscow offers Seppälä an attractive
growth opportunity. The opening up of
the Russian market will burden Sep-
pälä’s earnings to some extent.

Seppälä’s profitability is now at a good
level. Thanks to the development work
on the collection, the revamp of the store
network and economic growth in the
Baltic countries, sales and operating
profit too are set to improve on the level
posted in 2003. �

58%  Ladies' fashion

20%  Children's fashion

17%  Men's fashion

  5%  Cosmetics

Seppälä's sales by
merchandise sector 2003

92%  Finland

  7%  Estonia

  1%  Latvia

Distribution of Seppälä's
sales by market 2003

In the spring, Seppälä opened 14 new shoe departments 
that were launched with high-profile campaigns.

Advertising too was given a new, 
fashion magazine look.
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Corporate Governance

he corporate bodies of the parent company Stock-
mann plc which are responsible for the Group’s ad-
ministration and operations are the general meeting

of shareholders, the Board of Directors and the chief execu-
tive officer.

Annual General Meeting
The highest decision-making body of Stockmann plc is the
general meeting of shareholders. The Annual General Meet-
ing shall be held each year before the end of June. Stockmann
has two series of shares, of which each Series A share con-
fers ten votes at a general meeting and each Series B share
one vote. No one, however, can cast more than one fifth of the
votes represented at the general meeting except in situations
in which the Companies Act calls for passing a resolution with
a majority of the votes cast. Information on share ownership
is given on pages 45-46 of the Annual Report.

A Series A Share can be converted to a Series B Share up-
on the demand of a shareholder provided that the conversion
can take place within the limits of the minimum and maximum
amounts of the share series.

A two-tier provision concerning the obligation to exercise
a pre-emptive purchase of shares is written into the Articles
of Association. A shareholder whose proportion of all the
company’s shares or the number of votes conferred by the
shares reaches or exceeds 33 1/3 per cent is liable, at the de-
mand of the other shareholders, to purchase their shares and
the securities which according to the Companies Act give ti-
tle to them. If a previous pre-emptive purchase offer has not
led to the pre-emptive purchase of all the company’s shares,
the shareholder shall make a new pre-emptive purchase offer
when the shareholder’s proportion of all the company’s
shares or the votes conferred by the shares reaches or ex-
ceeds 50 per cent. 

The business of the Annual General Meeting includes ap-
proval of the company’s annual financial statements and the
passing of resolutions on the dividend and the election of
members of the Board of Directors.

Board of Directors
The company’s Board of Directors shall have a minimum of
five and a maximum of nine members. The members of the
Board of Directors have been elected to a three-year term of
office such that, as far as possible, one third of them have been
due to retire each year. To arrive at a distribution of this type,
part of the members have customarily been elected for one or
two years.

The Board of Directors will propose to the Annual Gener-
al Meeting to be held on March 30, 2004, that the Articles of
Association be amended by a provision specifying that all the
members of the Board of Directors be elected for one year
at a time.

A person who has reached the age of 65 years cannot be
elected a member of the Board of Directors. At present, the
Board of Directors has seven members, none of whom are
full-time members.

The Board of Directors shall elect from amongst its num-
ber a chairman and a vice chairman for one year at a time.

The company’s officers who participate regularly in meet-
ings of the Board of Directors are the chief executive officer,
the executive vice presidents, the chief financial officer and the
company lawyer, all of whom are not members of the Board
of Directors. The company lawyer acts as secretary to the
Board of Directors. Two employee representatives also par-
ticipate in meetings of the Board of Directors, and they like-
wise are not members of the Board of Directors. One of these
representatives is elected by the employee representatives of
Stockmann’s Group Council and the other by the association
representing Stockmann’s senior salaried employees.

The Board of Directors attends to the due organization of
the company’s administration and operations. In addition to
the duties defined separately in law and in the Articles of As-
sociation, the Board of Directors, among other things,
confirms the company’s long-term strategic and financial ob-
jectives, approves the budget and decides on major individu-
al capital expenditures, acquisitions, divestments and real-es-
tate deals and other projects of strategic importance. The
Board of Directors also approves the principles of the com-
pany’s risk management.

In its meeting of December 18, 2003, the Board of Directors
adopted rules of procedure defining the principles governing
the Board’s composition and method of election, its tasks, de-
cision-making procedure and meeting practice as well as the
principles of the Board’s self-assessment. The Board of Di-
rectors’ rules of procedure are published on the company’s
website at the address www.stockmann.fi.

The Board of Directors met 11 times in 2003. The average
attendance was 96 per cent.

At its meeting of February 12, 2003, the Board of Directors
set up a Compensation Committee, which was superseded by
an Appointments and Compensation Committee that was set
up at the Board’s meeting of December 18, 2003. The com-
mittee is made up of three members of the Board of Directors.
Its task is the preparation of appointment and compensation
matters concerning the chief executive officer, the executive
vice presidents and the other members of the Management
Committee, the preparation of the election of members of the
Board of Directors for proposal to the Annual General Meet-
ing as well as the preparation of compensation matters con-
cerning the Board of Directors. The committee meets as ne-
cessary at least once a year. During the 2003 financial year the
members of the committee were Lasse Koivu, chairman of the

T
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Board of Directors, who served as its chairman, the other
members being Erkki Etola, vice chairman of the Board of Di-
rectors, and Board member Henry Wiklund. The chief exe-
cutive officer has the right to attend meetings of the commit-
tee. The committee met once during the financial year. 

Chief executive officer
The Board of Directors appoints the company’s chief execu-
tive officer and decides on the terms and conditions of his
executive post, which are set forth in a written chief execu-
tive officer agreement. The chief executive officer is in charge
of the company’s line operations in accordance with the in-
structions and regulations issued by the Board of Directors.
Hannu Penttilä has been the company’s chief executive officer
since March 1, 2001.

The Group’s line organization
Apart from the chief executive officer, the Board of Directors
appoints the executive vice presidents, the chief financial
officer and the directors of the divisions. Henri Bucht, man-
aging director of the Hobby Hall Division, has also acted as the
company’s executive vice president as from February 1, 2001,
and as the CEO’s alternate. Jukka Hienonen, director of the
Department Store Division, has acted as the other of the com-
pany’s two executive vice presidents as from January 1, 2003.

Corporate Administration oversees the entire Stockmann
Group. Commercial operations are organized into four divi-
sions, which are the Department Store Division, the Vehicle Di-
vision, the Hobby Hall Division and the Seppälä Division. The
directors of the divisions report to the chief executive officer
and are members of the company’s Management Committee.

Management Committee
The Group’s Management Committee comprises the chief
executive officer, the executive vice presidents and the other
directors of the divisions, the chief financial officer as well as
the company lawyer, who acts as secretary to the Manage-
ment Committee.

Headed by the chief executive officer, the Management
Committee is responsible for directing line operations and for
preparing strategic and financial plans.

Oversight
The Board of Directors and operational management are re-
sponsible for internal oversight, the objective of which is to
ensure the efficiency and performance of operations, the re-
liability of information as well as the observance of rules and
operating principles. An essential part of internal oversight
is the Internal Audit, which operates as a separate unit with-
in Corporate Administration and reports to the chief execu-
tive officer. The Internal Audit is a function which is inde-

pendent of line operations and supports the Group manage-
ment in operations control and risk management, examining
and assessing the effectiveness of business operations and in-
ternal oversight as well as producing information and re-
commendations to management on how to enhance these
functions. The Internal Audit’s work is guided by a risk-ori-
ented approach in line with the priority areas of business op-
erations and their development.

The auditors elected by the Annual General Meeting ex-
amine the company’s accounting records, financial state-
ments and administration. The audit work is carried out dur-
ing the financial year through audits of the divisions and
company administration and by carrying out the official au-
dit of the financial statements at the close of the year. The
company has a minimum of one and a maximum of three au-
ditors, who have a minimum of one and a maximum of three
deputies. At present the company has two auditors and a
deputy auditor which is a firm of independent public ac-
countants authorized by the Central Chamber of Commerce.

The Internal Audit coordinates auditing activities between
the external and internal audits in order to ensure the com-
prehensiveness of the auditing work and to avoid overlapping
auditing tasks.

The fees paid to the auditors for the 2003 financial period
totalled EUR 136 000 for the audit of the parent company
and a total of EUR 324 000 for the audit of the Group. In ad-
dition, KPMG was paid EUR 54 300 in consultancy fees.

Management’s remuneration and other benefits
The Annual General Meeting passes resolutions on the re-
muneration paid to the members of the Board of Directors. In
accordance with the resolution passed by the Annual Gener-
al Meeting held on March 25, 2003, the fixed emoluments paid
for the 2003 financial year were EUR 45 000 to the chairman
of the Board of Directors, EUR 30 000 to the vice chairman
and EUR 20 000 to each of the other members of the Board.
About 50 per cent of the annual emoluments were paid in the
form of the company’s shares and the remainder in cash. All
the members of the Board of Directors were paid a meeting
fee of EUR 250 per meeting. For the 2003 financial year, the
members of the Board of Directors were paid cash emolu-
ments totalling EUR 104 361 and share emoluments of 6 251
of the company’s Series B shares. The value of the emolu-
ments paid was a total of EUR 190 000. The cash and share
emoluments paid to each of the members of the Board of Di-
rectors for 2003 are itemized on the company’s website. 

The total amount of the salary, emoluments and fringe
benefits paid to the chief executive officer in 2003 was EUR
418 163, of which fringe benefits accounted for EUR 11 400.
In the chief executive officer agreement, the CEO’s pension
age is set at 60. The pension is determined in accordance with
the Employees’ Pensions Act and a separate insurance plan
which is taken out by the company. The CEO’s period of no-
tice is specified bilaterally at 6 months. Should the company
terminate the agreement, the CEO has the right to com- �
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pensation corresponding to 12 months of fixed salary upon
expiry of the termination period. In addition, the CEO is en-
titled to extra compensation corresponding to 12 months of
fixed salary one year after expiry of the termination period if
the CEO has not retired on an employment, voluntary or
health-based pension funded by the company. Should the
company terminate the executive post relationship on can-
cellation grounds due to personal reasons, neither of said
classes of compensation shall be paid.

Incentive systems
The Group makes use of annual performance-based systems
of rewards and incentives to promote the achievement of
short-term objectives. The amount of the incentive is gener-
ally influenced by the earnings reported for the financial year
and the personal job contribution.

The principles of determining the incentive bonuses of the
CEO and the other members of the Management Committee
is confirmed annually by the Board of Directors on the basis
of a proposal prepared by the Appointments and Compen-
sation Committee. Bonuses are determined primarily on the
basis of the Group’s earnings and profitability trend such
that the determining factors are the Group’s profit before ex-
traordinary items net of other operating income, the Group’s
return on capital employed and the key figures for the divi-
sions, which are derived from the aforementioned. The maxi-
mum incentive is generally no more than 25 per cent of an-
nual salary income, but the limit can be exceeded on a sliding
scale in respect of Group targets.

On April 24, 2003, the Board of Directors approved for the
members of the company’s Management Committee, as a sup-
plement to the annual incentive, a long-term share bonus
scheme extending, in two year periods, up to the end of 2006.
Carrying out of the share bonus scheme is tied to the realiza-
tion of the Group’s development in accordance with its long-
term strategy, and its benchmarks are both consolidated profit
before extraordinary items net of other operating income and
the Group’s trend in the return on capital employed. Attain-
ment of the share bonus targets will be assessed in two-year
periods, for the first time in 2005 on the basis of whether the
aggregate targets for the years 2003–2004 have been reached.
For this period, the maximum incentive payable in the form of
Stockmann Series B shares to all the members of the Man-
agement Committee is a total not to exceed 19 161 shares as
well as 1.5 times the cash value of the shares. If the lower lim-
its defined for each target period are not exceeded for both
target criteria, no share bonus will be paid.

Achievement of the company’s long-term objectives has
been supported by two share option schemes for key em-
ployees, which were approved through resolutions passed at
the Annual General Meetings in 1997 and 2000. The sub-

scription period for shares with the 1997 share options end-
ed on January 31, 2004. Information on these share option
arrangements is given on page 44 of the Annual Report.

Insiders
Stockmann complies with the insider guidelines approved by
Helsinki Exchanges, the Central Chamber of Commerce and
the Confederation of Finnish Industry and Employers. Count-
ed as permanent insiders of Stockmann plc under the Secu-
rities Market Act, Chapter 5, Section 2, are the members of
the Board of Directors, the chief executive officer, executive
vice presidents and the auditors. In addition, the Insider
Guidelines specify that permanent insiders include persons
who act from time to time in tasks assigned by the chief exe-
cutive officer, said persons including the members of the
Group’s Management Committee. Stockmann’s Board of Di-
rectors has decided that the restriction on trading in the com-
pany’s shares by insiders is 14 days before the publication of
an interim report or the financial statements. A list of the per-
sons classified as permanent insiders is available on Stock-
mann’s website. The company makes use of the Insider Regis-
ter service kept by Finnish Central Securities Depository Ltd,
which makes available for public scrutiny the up-to-date share
ownership data on insiders. Additionally, the data on share-
holdings of the members of the Board of Directors and the
Management Committee, which are updated quarterly, are
available on the company’s website.

New recommendation on the Corporate
Governance of listed companies
HEX Plc, the Central Chamber of Commerce of Finland and
the Confederation of Finnish Industry and Employers pub-
lished in December 2003 a new recommendation on the Cor-
porate Governance of listed companies. Helsinki Exchanges
adopted it as a minimum set of regulations forming part of the
stock exchange’s regulatory regime. The recommendation
sets new requirements for the corporate governance of stock
exchange companies and also for their duty to inform, and it
will come into force on July 1, 2004. Stockmann will comply
with the recommendation as far as possible even before its of-
ficial entry into force.   �
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Financing and management of financial risks

he Group’s financing and management of financial
risks are handled on a centralized basis within Stock-
mann plc Treasury function in accordance with the

Treasury Guidelines that are approved by the Board of Di-
rectors. Group Treasury has more detailed operational in-
structions that include the principles for management of
financial risks as well as liquidity and securities management.
The divisions have separate instructions for hedging foreign
exchange exposure and a security policy.

The objective of the management of financial risks is to min-
imize the effect of the financial risks related to the business
operations on the Group’s financial result, balance sheet and
liquidity. The Group Treasury is responsible for the manage-
ment of the hedging of foreign exchange exposure in coop-
eration with the divisions, financing operations at a reason-
able price in all conditions and investing liquid funds pro-
ductively and safely. The Group Treasury also has an internal
bank function and is furthermore responsible for managing
Group accounts and securities.

Foreign exchange risk
Stockmann’s foreign exchange risk derives from purchases
and sales in foreign currency as well as foreign currency-de-
nominated investments made in units abroad.

The most important purchasing currencies are the United
States dollar, British pound, Hong Kong dollar and Swedish
krona and the most important sales currencies are the Russian
rouble, Estonian kroon and Latvian lat. In 2003, purchases
made in foreign currencies account for 13 per cent of the
Group’s purchases, whereas sales denominated in foreign
currencies make up 11 per cent of the Group’s aggregate
sales. The fast turnover rate typical of the retail trade reduces
the foreign exchange risk deriving from the purchases.

The management of foreign exchange risk related to the busi-
ness operations cash flows is based on the forecast 12-month
cash flow in foreign currencies, currency by currency. The
hedging period is usually a maximum of 12 months. The foreign
exchange risk related to balance sheet items derives from for-
eign currency-denominated investments made in units abroad.
Balance sheet risk is monitored and hedged separately.

The instruments used in hedging foreign exchange risk are
currency derivatives and currency-denominated borrowing.

Interest rate risk
Stockmann’s interest rate exposure arises from the cash flows
from the Group’s operations, capital expenditures and finan-
cing. A dual approach is employed in managing interest rate
risk. The Group’s borrowings and investments are diversified
across different maturities and, furthermore, floating rate
and fixed-interest instruments are used. The management of
interest rate risk also involves the use of forward rate agree-
ments and futures, interest rate options and interest rate
swaps. The average interest rate period of the loan and in-
vestment portfolio is a maximum of five years.

Liquidity risk
The aim of managing liquidity risk is to ensure that Stock-
mann is able to meet its financial obligations at any time. The
trend in liquidity is monitored by cash flow forecasts. Liquid-
ity risk is managed by ensuring the availability of sources of
funds at a reasonable price and by allocating a sufficient part
of the investments in liquid financial instruments.

Credit risk
Financial instruments involve the risk that the counterparty
to an agreement does not fulfil its obligations. Credit risk is
managed by means of counterparty limits. The counterparty
limits are reviewed and approved semi-annually.   �

T
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Personnel

he establishment of new sites meant an increase in the
Stockmann Group’s number of personnel in 2003. The
Zara and Stockmann Beauty chains opened new stores

in Finland. Abroad, a Zara store was opened in Moscow in
February and a department store in Riga in October. The cost
savings programme that Hobby Hall launched in autumn 2002
resulted in 53 redundancies during 2003 owing to production
and financial considerations. At the end of the year the Group
had 9 542 employees, or 625 more than a year ago. Women
made up 74 per cent of the Group’s personnel and men 26 per
cent. Amongst senior salaried employees, the ratio of women
to men was fairly unchanged: 70 per cent women and 30 per
cent men. The average age of the personnel was 34 years. Staff
turnover among permanent employees in the Group’s units in
Finland was on average 15 per cent. Staff turnover abroad was
greater, owing to the quite different labour markets.

Further information on the numbers of personnel is given
in the Board Report on Operations under the section "Per-
sonnel strength" on page 43 of the Annual Report and in the
accompanying table. Information on personnel is also given
in Note 4 to the Annual Accounts on page 56. 

Top employer in the retail trade
Each year some 30 000 people apply on their own initiative for
a job with Stockmann in Finland. The Stockmann Group is
seeking to be the most sought-after employer in the retail
trade in all the localities where it operates. According to the
Universum Graduate Survey that was carried out amongst
Finnish commercial studies students in 2003, Stockmann
emerged as the most desirable of the employers in the retail
trade and ranked 7th among all the 136 companies included
in the comparison.

With the aim of making the processing of personnel infor-
mation more effective Group-wide, in 2003 Stockmann made
further outlays on developing its electronic recruitment
process and system of saving personnel data.

Preparations for opening 
the Riga department store
The goal in hiring staff for the Riga department store and ar-
ranging their job orientation was on finding a procedure for
hiring, within a short time, a large number of people that
were motivated and suitable for customer service work. The
local personnel department took up the challenge, seeking to
meet the dual objective of time management and cost-effec-
tiveness. Service-mindedness was set as the most important
criterion for selection. 

To recruit employees, an evaluation team made up of su-
pervisors already hired by the department store was set up.
The applicants’ mathematical aptitude and ability to concen-
trate were tested in group situations, whereas interactive
skills were measured in discussions and role games. The en-
tire recruitment process was carried through in a month. The
department store hired 270 sales people from a total of 1 500
applicants. Each new hire went through an orientation pro-
gramme that is also in use at the department stores in Finland. 

Staff orientation in Finland
The high quality objectives of Stockmann’s customer service
also pose major challenges for swiftly carrying out the job and
working environment orientation for new staff. Accordingly,
all the divisions make use of a standardized orientation pro-
gramme which both individual new Stockmann employees
must go through, and it is also used with fairly large groups
at new sites that are about to open.

A big challenge for orientation procedures was training the
staff of the new Stockmann Beauty stores that were opened
in 2003 in Stockmann’s way of operating. A two-week, pre-
opening orientation cycle was arranged for the staff of each
new store. The points covered included Stockmann’s core
values, the Department Store Division’s business idea and a
presentation of the division’s customer service strategy, train-
ing in sales and customer service, a detailed overview of as-
sortments and products as well as guidance in handling the
store’s daily functions, from opening the cash register to deal-
ing with customer feedback.

The managers selected for the Zara chain went through a
thorough training programme. At first, each of them worked
for 4-6 weeks as a sales person in one of the stores, learning
all the store tasks under the guidance of a responsible sales
person. Progress was monitored weekly during the learning
cycle. On the basis of the evaluations and the individual in
question, a foreign store in the Zara chain was selected for
managerial training consisting of a stint of 4-8 weeks before
starting in the job assigned to them.

Human resources development
The human resources development function was reorganized
by setting up a separate Human Resources Development De-
partment within Corporate Management and Administration.

To ensure closer cooperation amongst the Group’s divi-
sions, a development coordinator was appointed for the dif-
ferent units and put in charge of monitoring the unit's train-
ing activities and passing along information on planned and
implemented development actions. This network will enable
Stockmann to survey common development needs and to
identify the potential for making the most of synergy advan-
tages in development activities.

Assessment of the quality of personal customer service con-
tinued at the department stores in Finland. All in all, during the
year nearly 1 800 employees received feedback from their su-
pervisor on an actual customer service situation. The new
evaluation method has been well received by the personnel.

The biggest emphasis in training has again been on im-
proving the competence of customer service staff. Develop-
ment actions are based largely on measurements of the qual-
ity of customer service that were made at the department
stores in 2003. In the surveys, external test purchasers assess
customer service situations on the basis of pre-agreed crite-
ria. Indicators of customer service quality are calculated on
the basis of the assessments. A total of 1 084 situations were
assessed in 2003. The results of these surveys show a clear im-
provement in the level of customer service. The customer
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service theme was reiterated at all the functions arranged for
staff during the year.

More than one hundred Department Store Division em-
ployees took part in a training programme for purchasing
staff. The programme is geared to concrete objectives: rais-
ing the gross margin level, uniform procedures for buyers,
producing Stockmann presentation materials for suppliers
and strengthening cooperation among buyers.

A development programme for the Department Store Di-
vision’s managers was started in May. The pilot group con-
sisted of 28 managers working in different tasks. The pro-
gramme covered lectures, literature, exercises, group work
and discussions. Learning on the job was a major emphasis
and each trainee took part in project teamwork in his or her
own working group during the training period.

At the end of the year the Department Store Division or-
ganized at each site in Finland a workplace atmosphere study
that is repeated at two-year intervals. The results will be
analysed in the first part of 2004, and development focuses
will be selected on the basis of these analyses.

Hobby Hall arranged training in team leadership, team-
work and customer service after its stores went over to a team
organization. Performance discussions began to be held sys-
tematically, initially at the manager, foreman and team leader
levels. The discussions will be held with each member of the
personnel. Timely training has been arranged for different
employee groups, covering areas such as security matters and
combating wastage and pilferage.

The year’s theme for the Seppälä Spirit training programme
was mobilizing strategy. For the store network the theme
was carried out in the form of boosting the efficiency of di-
rect customer service work, whereas for the administrative
and warehousing functions this was done by staging a Great
Adventure event. The spirit of the Adventure involved work-
ing as a group to find answers and to put forth proposals for
action regarding the expansion strategy, competitive situa-
tion, product categories and assortment, visual marketing
and issues connected with enhancing administrative work.

During 2003 the Vehicle Division put into action the teach-
ings of the previous year’s performance discussion training
by holding more than 500 performance appraisal discussions.
The feedback that came in from the personnel was very pos-
itive. Towards the end of the year the Resources on the Job
questionnaire was revamped. One objective of the process
was to obtain information on the implementation of areas that
were chosen as development focuses after the previous year’s
study. The servicing staff took part actively in technical train-

ing arranged by various importers. A year-long training pro-
gramme was built for staff that sell company cars.

Expanded incentive systems
A number of different incentive systems aiming at motivating
the personnel and good job execution are employed across
the Group. Nearly all staff working in sales positions are cov-
ered by the profit centre’s sales-based incentive system.

During 2003 an incentive system based on the employees’
personal sales figures was also tried out at some of the De-
partment Store Division’s units in Finland and Estonia. The pi-
lot programme has got off to a positive start, though season-
al fluctuation in sales volumes means that the system will
have to be developed further. The Vehicle Division arranged
various sales volume-based competitions that showed good
results both in terms of sales growth and the earnings objec-
tives reached.

A large part of the managerial staff are covered by a per-
sonal incentive system. The amount of the incentive reward
is generally influenced by the results of both personal work
and the division’s performance.

Management incentive systems and the share option
schemes for key employees are discussed in the section "Cor-
porate Governance" of the Annual Report on page 32. De-
tailed information on the share option arrangements is pre-
sented in the section "Share Capital and Shares" on page 44.

The Group paid a total of EUR 5 million in various incen-
tive bonuses in 2003.

Codetermination
During the year the Employees' Councils of the different di-
visions conducted a review of the matters prescribed in their
own statutes and in the Act on Co-operation within Under-
takings in a good and constructive spirit. Hobby Hall’s focus
on distance retailing and boosting the efficiency of its func-
tions meant closing stores and downsizing the staff. Of those
who received notice of dismissal, 26 people have moved to
other jobs within Hobby Hall or in other Stockmann Group
units, and 53 employees will become redundant during 2004
unless suitable positions can be found within the Group.

Personnel abroad
The total number of the Group’s employees abroad was 1 946
people, of whom 1 274 had full-time jobs and 672 were part-
timers. Stockmann adheres to the principle that its units
abroad operate to the greatest possible extent with staff re-
cruited in the host country.   �
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ocial responsibility is an essential element of Stock-
mann’s operating and management culture. The de-
velopment of functions connected with social re-

sponsibility has been organized Group-wide to form a part of
normal business operations. In 2002, the Group carried out a
social responsibility project that brought a significant in-
crease in its commitment in the area of environmental and so-
cial responsibility.

The social responsibility project involved a thorough as-
sessment of the present state of environmental management
across the divisions, whilst working out the Group’s new en-
vironmental policy and organizing the management of envi-
ronmental compliance.

Department Store Division
The objective of the environmental systems is to develop the
department stores’ operations to be increasingly environ-
mentally sound and to prevent environmental impacts re-
sulting from operations. The Helsinki department store un-
dertook to adapt its environmental system in line with the ISO
14001 standard in autumn 2002. The environmental system
covering the functions of the Helsinki department store and
Academic Bookstore as well as the Department Store Divi-
sion’s joint purchasing and warehousing functions in Pitäjän-
mäki, Helsinki, was certified in February 2003.

Similar environmental systems were built for all Stock-
mann’s department stores in Finland during the year. Stock-
mann is the first Finnish company whose entire chain of de-
partment stores in Finland has received ISO 14001 accredi-
tation. The certification was carried out by Bureau Veritas
Quality International and covers the functions of Stockmann’s
department stores and Academic Bookstores in Finland along
with the Department Store Division’s joint purchasing and
warehousing functions in Pitäjänmäki. Just over 4 500 people
work in jobs falling within the scope of the certified functions.
For Stockmann’s stakeholders, the certified environmental
system is a guarantee that environmental impacts are taken
into account in operations every step of the way.

In May, Stockmann signed a Letter of Intent with Helsinki
Energy concerning the supply of district cooling energy to the
department store in the centre of Helsinki in connection with

the enlargement project. District cooling is a new way of con-
serving energy and the environment. It offers a means of re-
placing the conventional production of cooling energy with-
in individual buildings.

Vehicle Division
Stockmann’s Vehicle Division participates in the environ-
mental programme of Finland’s Central Organization for Mo-
tor Trade and Repairs (AKL). Stockmann’s Volkswagen deal-
ership in Vantaa took part in an AKL pilot project back in
1996, and the environmental programme resulting from this
initiative today covers all the Vehicle Division’s units. The en-
vironmental programme is structured along the lines of the
ISO 14001 environmental standard. The objective is to adapt
vehicle sales and repair shop operations to the requirements
of environmental protection and to observe environmental
values. In addition, the Vehicle Division’s outlets operate in ac-
cordance with certified ISO 9001 quality systems that en-
compass environmental compliance.

Hobby Hall
During 2003, an overhaul of Hobby Hall’s Enterprise Re-
source Planning system was launched. This will enable the di-
vision better to reduce environmental impacts by means of lo-
gistical efficiency. Over the year, Hobby Hall has carried out
a comprehensive survey of waste management requirements.
The survey has led to enhanced waste management that takes
into account environmental impacts.

Hobby Hall offers its customers in the Helsinki metropoli-
tan area the possibility to recycle an old home appliance when
a new one is delivered. Plans are being made to expand the
service to cover the entire country. A similar recycling service
is also in use in Stockmann department stores. 

Distance retailing catalogues and packaging are made from
environmentally friendly materials and they are recyclable.

Seppälä
Seppälä’s environmental compliance was stepped up at both
the head office and the Goods Handling Centre. Recycling
and sorting are performed according to plans, with an em-
phasis on the staff’s own responsibility.

During 2003, the sorting and recycling possibilities of all the
stores in Finland were surveyed and operational guidelines
were prepared for the stores. Many Seppälä stores are loca-
ted in shopping centres, where environmental and waste
management matters have already been taken into account.

Environment and social responsibility

S
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For its suppliers, Seppälä has prepared co-operation in-
structions that aim to avoid overpackaging of products, whilst
seeking to affect suppliers’ selections of packaging materials
and ways of packaging. These measures have also led to an
improvement in the stock turn rate. The cooperation instruc-
tions also deal with the principles of responsible importing.

Social responsibility
In 2001, Stockmann and a number of other companies that
engage in importing joined the Network to advance Social
Responsibility in Importing that is coordinated by the Central
Chamber of Commerce, and Stockmann signed a document

in which the participating companies undertake cooperation
to promote the observance of ethical principles within their
importing activities.

Stockmann has also given its commitment to observe the
principles of responsible import trade as set out by the In-
ternational Association of Department Stores (IADS). The
IADS principles are largely similar to those of the Network
to advance Social Responsibility in Importing.

In its social responsibility project, Stockmann focused on
social responsibility in international trade, and during 2003
the Commitment to Social Responsibility in Importing was
placed in use across the divisions. By virtue of this com-
mitment, which is based on UN declarations and Interna-
tional Labour Organization agreements, a supplier under-
takes, for example, not to use child labour or forced labour,
not to practice discrimination and to guarantee employees
safe working conditions and adequate wages. By the end of
2003, the Commitment to Social Responsibility in Importing
had been signed by all Seppälä’s present suppliers and by
nearly all the Department Store Division’s and Hobby Hall’s
suppliers.

Stockmann was a founding member when the national
chapter of Transparency International, an international or-
ganization that coordinates work aimed at combating
bribery, began its operations in Finland in 2003. Stockmann
plays an active role in the organization’s activities and is
seeking to work on behalf of anti-corruption business prac-
tices in its operating environment.

Objectives for 2004
During 2004, the divisions will continue the further develop-
ment of their environmental protection and environmental
responsibility activities in accordance with Stockmann’s en-
vironmental policy. The Department Store Division’s envi-
ronmental systems will be developed and the systems will be
adapted as a part of efficient chain operations. The Depart-
ment Store Division’s objectives are to reduce energy con-
sumption and to raise the efficiency rate. The Vehicle Division
will develop its operations in accordance with the environ-
mental programme and quality systems. Among the Vehicle
Division’s goals is to raise the efficiency rate by reducing the
volume of mixed waste. Hobby Hall is continuing to develop
environmentally responsible operations at its stores and
warehouse, notably by reducing the use of packaging mate-
rial and boosting the efficiency rate. Seppälä is seeking to re-
duce further the volume of waste and to increase recycling
across the entire chain.

Stockmann is continuing its work to develop social re-
sponsibility and promote responsible importing. Reporting
will be upgraded so as to make use of information on the en-
vironment in daily operations and to distribute this informa-
tion to stakeholders. �

The patient efforts to develop environmental systems brought 
a splendid result. All the Stockmann department stores in Finland
and the Academic Bookstores as well as the Department Store 
Division’s purchasing and warehousing functions received an 
ISO 14001 environmental certificate during 2003.
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Board report on operations

Sales up 7.4 per cent
The Stockmann Group’s sales grew by
7.4 per cent, or EUR 116.3 million, to
EUR 1 698.6 million. Net turnover in-
creased by EUR 97.4 million, or 7.4 per
cent, to EUR 1 412.7 million. The net
turnover figures by division are shown
in the accompanying table.

Earnings improve
The gross margin on the Group’s oper-
ations was EUR 457.5 million, an in-
crease of EUR 18.6 million on the pre-
vious year (EUR 438.9 million), and 32.4
per cent of net turnover (33.4 per cent).
The relative gross margin on operations
weakened by 1.0 percentage point 
owing to the strong growth in the Ve-
hicle Division’s sales and the weakening
in the Hobby Hall Division’s relative
gross margin. Operating expenses
grew by EUR 21.4 million and depreci-
ation diminished by EUR 0.1 million. 

Operating profit was up EUR 3.9 mil-
lion to EUR 65.7 million. Operating
profit was 4.7 per cent of net turnover,
or on a par with the previous year.

Other operating income consisted
mainly of capital gains on the sale of re-
al estate and the goodwill compensation
obtained from the disposal of the agency
sales of magazine and newspaper sub-
scriptions. Other operating income
amounted to EUR 15.4 million, com-
pared with EUR 8.8 million a year ago.

Net financial income grew by EUR
1.6 million from the previous year and
was EUR 8.3 million.

Profit before extraordinary items
grew by EUR 5.4 million and was EUR
74.0 million. Because there were no ex-
traordinary items, pre-tax profit was the
same in amount.

Direct taxes increased by EUR 3.4
million and were EUR 22.3 million.

Net profit for the financial year was
EUR 51.7 million, compared with EUR
49.7 million a year earlier.

Earnings per share increased by EUR
0.04 and were EUR 1.01. The figure a
year ago was EUR 0.97. Earnings per
share, diluted for the effect of share op-
tions, were EUR 1.00 (EUR 0.97).

Capital employed grew and was EUR
611.9 million (EUR 577.5 million). Capi-
tal employed was increased, notably, by
the share subscriptions made with the
1997 options at the end of the year. The
return on capital employed rose to 13.2
per cent, as against 12.6 per cent a year
ago. The return on equity was 9.6 per
cent, as it was a year earlier. Equity per
share was EUR 10.36, compared with
EUR 10.17 a year earlier.

The company’s market capitalization
grew by 34.6 per cent, or by EUR 245.5
million from the previous year and was
EUR 955.6 million.

The Stockmann Group’s sales grew by 7.4 per cent to EUR 1698.6 million. Profit before

extraordinary items grew by 7.9 per cent and was EUR 74.0 million. The operating profit figures

posted by the Department Store Division and Seppälä Division were at the previous year’s

good level. The Vehicle Division reported its best-ever earnings. The Hobby Hall Division’s result

was down on the previous year and in the red. Stockmann’s earnings per share improved to

EUR 1.01, as against EUR 0.97 a year earlier. The Board of Directors is proposing the payment

of an ordinary dividend of EUR 0.90 for the 2003 financial year and a bonus dividend of EUR 0.45,

or a total of EUR 1.35 per share.
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Sales and profitability
trend of the divisions
The Department Store Division’s sales
grew by 5 per cent to EUR 851.3 million.
Sales by the functions in Finland in-
creased by 4 per cent. The Oulu depart-
ment store reported a particularly
strong increase in sales. Sales by Inter-
national Operations grew by 10 per
cent and its share of the division’s sales
rose to 15.8 per cent (15.1 per cent). The
Department Store Division posted op-
erating profit of EUR 39.7 million, the
same figure as a year ago. Earnings
were burdened by the pre-opening
costs of the Riga department store,
which was opened in mid-October, as
well as by the pre-opening costs for the
new Stockmann Beauty and Zara
stores. In addition, the result of Inter-
national Operations was burdened by
the fall in the exchange rate of the US
dollar, particularly in the last quarter.
The return on capital employed was
21.1 per cent, on a par with the figure a
year earlier (21.0 per cent).

The lowering in the car tax at the be-
ginning of the year has led to soaring
vehicle sales, which continued all year
long. The Vehicle Division’s sales grew
by 20 per cent to EUR 480.4 million.
Unit sales of new vehicles grew by 26.4
per cent on the previous year, rising
from 9 965 to 11 333, and used vehicles
were up 16.6 per cent, rising from 7 917
to 9 327. Stockmann’s market share in
the motor trade grew further in all the
localities where it operates. The divi-
sion’s operating profit increased by
EUR 0.2 million to EUR 5.6 million, an
all-time high (EUR 5.4 million). At the
beginning of October, the Vehicle Divi-
sion wound up its last Mitsubishi deal-
ership. Its territory as an Audi dealer in

turn expanded from the start of October
to eastern and western Uusimaa pro-
vince in addition to the existing dealer-
ship in the Helsinki metropolitan area.
The return on capital employed was
13.2 per cent, against 13.5 per cent a
year earlier.

Sales by the Hobby Hall Division de-
clined by 1 per cent to EUR 235.7 mil-
lion. The volume of packages dis-
patched grew by 5.6 per cent. Towards
the end of 2002, Hobby Hall launched a
streamlining programme aiming at an-
nual cost savings of EUR 6 million. The
programme was carried out according
to plan and had an impact on the trend
in costs beginning in the second quar-
ter. Because the relative gross margin
and sales fell clearly short of targets,
Hobby Hall’s profitability was unsatis-
factory. In addition, the costs of wind-
ing up stores cut into earnings. The
Hobby Hall Division’s operating result
decreased by EUR 3.9 million and was a
loss of EUR 3.4 million. In order to im-
prove its profitability, the Hobby Hall
Division decided in autumn 2003 to con-
centrate more closely on distance re-
tailing and to step up its logistics and
category management. The objective of
the changes is to achieve an improve-
ment in earnings of about EUR 7.5–8.5
million annually. The Herttoniemi store
was closed in September, the stores in
Espoo and in the centre of Tallinn at the
end of 2003 and the Tampere store in
February 2004. It was decided to change
the role of the stores remaining in oper-
ation – in Helsinki’s Hämeentie street, in
the Tammisto district of Vantaa and at
Rocca al Mare in Tallinn – so that they
support distance retailing. During 2003
the Hobby Hall Division’s staff was re-
duced by about 100 employees.
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The Seppälä Division’s sales declined
by 2 per cent on the same period a year
ago and were EUR 130.3 million. Sep-
pälä has been striving to improve its
stock turn rate and gross margin, and
results began to show up in the form of
improved operating profit in the latter
half of the year compared with the same
period a year earlier. On the other hand,
operating with a clearly lower level of
stocks than in the previous year affect-
ed the sales trend to some extent. In ad-
dition, Seppälä’s largest store in Estonia,
which is located in Tallinn’s Viru Centre,
has been closed since April 2003 be-
cause of refurbishing work on the shop-
ping centre that will take about a year.
The number of stores in Finland was re-
duced by one: four stores were closed
and three new stores were opened.
Year-end sales were nevertheless lifted
by the first four stores that were opened
in Riga, Latvia, in the autumn.

Despite unsatisfactory earnings in
the second quarter, full-year operating
profit rose to nearly the previous year’s
level and was EUR 10.1 million (EUR
10.4 million). The return on capital em-
ployed increased by a hefty 58.5 per
cent (52.4 per cent) thanks to a speed-up
in capital turnover. 

The trend in operating profit and re-
turn on capital employed by division
are shown in the accompanying table.

Financing and invested capital
Liquid assets totalled EUR 121.3 million,
compared with EUR 70.5 million at the
end of 2002.

Loan repayments during the year
amounted to EUR 1.0 million. In Latvia
an LVL 9.0 million (EUR 13.6 million) loan
for the department store construction
project was drawn down. The amount of
long-term loans at the end of December
was EUR 48.6 million. Capital expendi-
tures in 2003 came to EUR 40.9 million.
Dividend payouts total EUR 45.8 million.
The 1997 options were exercised to sub-
scribe for a total of 1 239 700 shares in
the last quarter, bringing a total increase
in shareholders’ equity of EUR 16.4 mil-
lion. In addition, disposals of fixed assets
generated EUR 36.6 million.

The equity ratio declined from 69.7
per cent in the comparison period to
68.3 per cent.

Total contingent liabilities diminished
by EUR 7.6 million from the end of 2002
and were EUR 60.8 million. Lease
agreements on business premises
amounted to EUR 471.1 million, com-
pared with EUR 363.0 million a year
earlier. Lease liabilities were increased
by the leases on the new department
stores in Moscow and in the Jumbo
Shopping Centre in Vantaa as well as by
the sale and leaseback of the Tapiola de-
partment store property.

Dividends
A dividend of EUR 0.70 per share was
paid for the 2002 financial year and ad-
ditionally a bonus dividend of EUR 0.20
per share in honour of the company’s
140-year jubilee, or a total of EUR 45.8
million. In recent years the company
has had a positive earnings trend, a
strong balance sheet and a very high
equity ratio, in addition to which the
share option programmes that are ma-
turing over the next few years will in-
crease the company’s shareholders’ 
equity further. Accordingly, the Board
of Directors is proposing to the Annual
General Meeting the payment of an or-
dinary dividend for the 2003 financial
year of EUR 0.90 and a bonus dividend
of EUR 0.45, or a total of EUR 1.35 per
share. The proposed dividend is 133.7
per cent of earnings per share.

Property and business 
transactions
In line with its strategy of freeing up
capital, at the end of March Stockmann
sold its department store property in Es-
poo’s Tapiola district to a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Dutch real-estate in-
vestment company Wereldhave N.V. for
just over EUR 36 million. At the same
time, Stockmann leased the divested
property from the new owner for the
Tapiola department store’s use under a
long-term leaseback agreement.

Stockmann sold Academic Book-
store’s agency sales of magazine and
newspaper subscriptions to Suoma-
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lainen Kirjakauppa Oy. The business
was transferred to the new owner as
from June 1, 2003. The arrangement fits
in with the Stockmann Group’s strategy,
with its focus on the consumer trade.
Academic Bookstore will continue act-
ing as an agent for magazine and news-
paper subscriptions ordered by Stock-
mann’s Loyal Customers and will still
handle order-based book sales to cus-
tomers and public-sector organizations.

Capital expenditures
Capital expenditures during the finan-
cial year totalled EUR 40.9 million (EUR
25.8 million).

The Department Store Division’s cap-
ital expenditures came to EUR 18.2 mil-
lion. The division’s biggest capital ex-
penditure was the Riga department
store which was opened on October 17.
During 2003 the outlay for the site’s
building and fixturings was a total of
about EUR 14.7 million. All in all, Stock-
mann has invested EUR 19.7 million in
the site.

Moscow’s first Zara store was opened
at the end of February in the Mega
Shopping Centre. In April new Zara
stores were opened in Finland in
Helsinki’s Itäkeskus Shopping Centre
and in Turku’s Hansa Block. New stores
that are part of the Stockmann Beauty
cosmetics chain were opened during
the year in the Forum Shopping Centre
in Helsinki and in Tampere’s Koski-
keskus Shopping Centre, as well as in
Seinäjoki and Vaasa.

In April Stockmann and IKEA’s Rus-
sian subsidiary LLC IKEA MOS entered
into a lease agreement on a Stockmann
department store with about 10 000
square metres of retail space that will be
located in the Mega Shopping Centre
on the south side of Moscow. The con-
struction works on the site are pro-
ceeding according to plans and the de-
partment store will be opened in April
2004. Stockmann’s investments in the

site will come to about EUR 20 million,
of which an outlay of EUR 2.7 million
was made during 2003. Established by
IKEA, Mega is a 200 000 square metre
shopping centre where, among other
retailers, the first Zara in Russia has
been in operation since February.

Refurbishing and enlargement works
are in progress in the Stockmann-
owned building in the Suomenoja dis-
trict of Espoo which is used by the Ve-
hicle Division. An Audi dealership ser-
ving metropolitan Helsinki and its envi-
rons will be opened in the refurbished
premises in spring 2004. The project
has a cost estimate of about EUR 3.4
million.

The Hobby Hall Division’s capital ex-
penditures totalled EUR 1.7 million.
They went for developing the informa-
tion systems and starting up mail order
sales in Lithuania.

Seppälä’s capital expenditures came
to EUR 1.2 million. They went primari-
ly for the new stores in Latvia.

Investments in real-estate properties
during the financial year amounted to
EUR 16.8 million, of which EUR 9.6 mil-
lion was for the Riga department store.

Other capital expenditures came to
EUR 3.0 million.

Current projects
In the autumn IKEA decided to build a
Mega North Shopping Centre with
about 200 000 square metres of retail
space on Moscow’s north side. In Octo-
ber Stockmann made an agreement
with IKEA on opening a department
store with about 10 000 square metres of
retail space in rented premises in the
same shopping centre. The construction
works got under way at the end of 2003.
Stockmann’s capital expenditure for the
site will come to about EUR 20 million.
According to plans, the department
store will be opened at the end of 2004
and it will be Moscow’s third full-sized
Stockmann department store. �
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The preliminary agreement that was
signed with ZAO Znamenskaya con-
cerning a department store in St Pe-
tersburg has lapsed because the owner
of the property failed to arrange the
financing required for implementing
the shopping centre by the deadline
specified in the agreement. Stockmann
is looking for alternative department
store sites in St Petersburg.

Stockmann has made an agreement
with VV-Auto Oy, which is owned by
Kesko Corporation, on termination of
the lease agreement for the VW-Audi
car dealership in Helsinki’s Herttoniemi
district by December 31, 2004 at the la-
test. The parties are negotiating on a
possible sale of business operations by
the end of August 2004.

In October Stockmann made an
agreement on opening a department
store with about 11 000 square metres
of retail space in rented premises in the
new section of the Jumbo Shopping
Centre in Vantaa. According to plans,
the department store will be completed
in 2006 at the latest.

A large-scale project for enlargement
and modification works on the depart-
ment store in the centre of Helsinki is
pending. According to the plan, the de-
partment store’s commercial premises
will be expanded by about 10 000 square
metres by converting existing premises
to commercial use and by building new
retail space. In addition, completely new
goods handling and maintenance areas
will be built as well as access passages to
the new customer car-park. After the
enlargement the Helsinki department
store will have about 50 000 square me-
tres of retail sales space. The project has
a total cost estimate of about EUR 115
million. The works are estimated to
reach completion during 2008. Imple-
mentation of the project will call for
modifying the town plan, a process that
has already been started.

Preparations for 
IFRS financial statements
The IAS regulation which the European
Union issued in 2002 stipulates that all
listed companies prepare consolidated

financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Stan-
dards (IFRS) for the 2005 financial year
at the latest. 

Stockmann undertook preparations
for IFRS financial statements in spring
2002, and the work has progressed ac-
cording to the timetable set. Stock-
mann’s IFRS working group has sur-
veyed all the IFRS standards that affect
the Group’s operations and the changes
in accounting practice they will entail.
Basic training in the implementation of
IFRS and the standards that are of most
relevance to Stockmann has been
arranged for the staff. The decisions re-
quired for the selection of the principles
of valuing fixed assets, the classification
and treatment of financial instruments
and the format for presenting financial
statement information were taken in au-
tumn 2003. An information system that
facilitates the preparation and docu-
mentation of IFRS financial statements
was placed in use in October 2003.

Stockmann will go over to IFRS
financial statements by drawing up, on
the basis of the financial statements for
2003, an opening IFRS balance sheet
for 2004 and making the IFRS-required
adjustments to the financial statements
for 2003. During 2004, IFRS financial
statements will be prepared quarterly
alongside the accounts according to
Finnish financial statement practice in
order to obtain comparison figures for
the 2005 interim reports. The interim
reports and financial statements for
2005 will be published in accordance
with IFRS.

Effects on the financial
statements of introducing IFRS
According to a preliminary analysis, the
changeover to IFRS reporting can in-
volve changes in Stockmann’s account-
ing policies particularly in the following
subareas: the method of depreciating
revaluations, the treatment of deferred
taxes, segmental reporting, the treat-
ment of own shares, the treatment of
defined benefit plans (the funded part of
the disability pension cover based on
the Employees´ Pension Act), the clas-

sification and valuation of financial as-
sets as well as hedge accounting for de-
rivative contracts.

In addition, the IFRS financial state-
ments must present more extensive
notes to the accounts than at present,
explain the accounting policies in
greater detail and present a new state-
ment of shareholders’ equity.

Since IFRS standards are still partial-
ly in the process of finalization, it has
not yet been possible to take account of
all the details of the changes compared
with present reporting. According to a
preliminary analysis, the effect of the
change in accounting policies on the
Group’s profit and loss account and bal-
ance sheet will be minor. The estimate
available at the present time indicates
that the change in accounting policies
will reduce the Group’s total assets,
thereby causing a slight decrease in the
equity ratio. According to the estimate,
the annual effects on the consolidated
profit and loss account will not be ma-
terial in amount.

Share capital and shares
At its meetings held on May 20, 2003,
August 12, 2003, and February 12, 2004,
Stockmann’s Board of Directors ap-
proved shareholders’ requests to con-
vert a total of 293 000 of the company’s
shares from Series A into Series B
shares in accordance with Article 3 of
the Articles of Association.

A total of 5 580 Stockmann plc Series
B shares with a par value of 2 euros
were subscribed for with Stockmann
Loyal Customer share options during
the subscription period from May 2,
2003, to May 31, 2003. As a conse-
quence of the subscriptions, the share
capital was increased by EUR 11 160.

The 1997 share options were exer-
cised to subscribe for a total of 1 239 700
Stockmann plc Series B shares with a
par value of 2 euros in the fourth quar-
ter. As a consequence of the subscrip-
tions, the share capital was increased by
EUR 2 479 400. During January 2004,
the 1997 options were exercised to sub-
scribe for a further 20 300 Series B
shares, and consequently the options
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were exercised to subscribe for the
maximum amount or 1 260 000 Series B
shares. As a consequence of the sub-
scriptions, the total increase in the
share capital was EUR 2 520 000. The
subscription period for the 1997 options
ended on January 31, 2004.

At the end of the year, the total num-
ber of Series A shares was 24 738 893
and there were 27 890 448 Series B
shares. Following the increases the
share capital is EUR 105 258 682.

The company’s market capitalization
grew by 34.6 per cent during the year
and was EUR 955.6 million at the end of
December. At the end of 2002, the mar-
ket capitalization was EUR 710.1 million.

Stockmann’s shares outperformed
both the HEX All-Share Index and the
HEX Portfolio Index during the year. At
the end of December the stock ex-
change price of the Series A share was
EUR 18.00, compared with EUR 13.84 at
the end of 2002, and the Series B share
was selling at EUR 18.30, as against
EUR 13.80 at the end of 2002. During
the year more than 20 per cent of the
company’s shares changed owners.

At the end of December Stockmann
held 163 000 of the company’s own Se-
ries A shares and 250 000 of its own Se-
ries B shares. The par value of these
shares is a total of EUR 826000, and they
represent 0.8 per cent of all the shares
outstanding as well as 0.7 per cent of the
total votes. The shares were purchased
for a total price of EUR 6.2 million.

The company’s Board of Directors
does not have valid authorizations to
increase the share capital or to float is-
sues of convertible bonds or bonds with
warrants or to buy back its own shares. 

Personnel strength
Stockmann’s payroll at the end of De-
cember 2003 was 9 542 employees, or
625 employees more than at the end of
the previous year.

In 2003 Stockmann employed an av-
erage of 8 745 people, or 432 more than
in the previous year, when the average
payroll was 8 313 employees. Convert-
ed to full-time staff, the average number
of employees rose by 316 and was 7 068.
The number of employees grew prima-
rily owing to the effect of the depart-
ment store opened in Riga in October
and the new Zara stores. In the parent
company, the average number of em-
ployees converted to full-time staff in-

creased by 24 and was 4 280.
At the end of 2003 the number of staff

working at units abroad was 1 946 em-
ployees, or 20 per cent of the entire per-
sonnel. At the end of the previous year, 
1 387 employees, or 16 per cent of the
personnel, were employed at units
abroad.

Outlook for 2004
Retail sales excluding the motor trade
are estimated to increase by about 2 per
cent in Finland in 2004. The volume of
new vehicle sales is estimated to be at
the previous year’s level. It is estimated
that the markets in Russia and the Baltic
countries will continue to grow faster
than the Finnish market. The growth in
the Stockmann Group’s sales is expec-
ted to be at least at the same level as it
was in 2003. Sales in 2004 are estimated
to top EUR 1.8 billion.

The operating profit generated by the
Department Store Division and Seppälä
is estimated to improve on the level re-
ported for 2003 and the Vehicle Divi-
sion’s operating profit is set to remain at
least at the same level. Hobby Hall’s re-
sult is expected to improve significant-
ly and to return to the black. Accord-
ingly, profit on ordinary operations is
estimated to improve markedly. Other
operating income will depend on the
decisions taken during the year. Stock-
mann’s target is for the Group to post
higher profit before extraordinary items
in 2004 than it did in 2003.

Board proposal for 
the distribution of profits
The Board of Directors’ proposal for the
parent company’s dividend is on page
64 of the Annual Report. �

-5

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

2003

2002

EUR mill.

Operating profit according to
management accounting 2002-2003

Real
Estate

SeppäläHobby
Hall

Vehicle
Div.

Department
Store Div.

-5

0

5

10

15

20

25

50

60

2003

2002

%

ROCE %* 2002-2003

* Operating profit according to management 
accounting as a ratio of capital employed

Real
Estate

SeppäläHobby
Hall

Vehicle
div.

Department
Store Div.

0

50

100

150

200

2003

2002

EUR mill.

Capital employed 
2002-2003

Real
Estate

SeppäläHobby
Hall

Vehicle
Div.

Department
Store Div.

Operating profit according to 
management accounting
In calculating operating profit for man-
agement accounting purposes, the divi-
sions are charged an internal rent for
their own business premises in accor-
dance with the prevailing market rent and
they are also charged for centrally pro-
duced services. The divisions’ operating
profit includes the account servicing
charges for the Stockmann account as
well as the interest share of hire purchase
and leasing income. Other operating
income is not allocated to the divisions.

Capital employed
Capital employed has been calculated as 
a 12-month moving average.



44 S T O C K M A N N • S H A R E S A N D S H A R E C A P I TA L

Shares and share capital

The share capital of Stockmann plc is divided into Series
A and Series B shares. Series A shares carry ten votes and
Series B shares one vote. The par value of both series of
shares is EUR 2.00 and the shares of both series entitle
their holders to an equal dividend.

The company’s shares are in the book-entry system. The num-
ber of registered shareholders at December 31, 2003, was 
15 591 (13 999 shareholders at December 31, 2002) represent-
ing 99.9 per cent of the company’s shares outstanding.

Shares

General price trend

Share prices rose on Helsinki Exchanges during the financial
year by 4.4 per cent as measured by the HEX All-Share Index
and by 16.2 per cent as measured by the HEX Portfolio Index.
The retail industry index rose by 20.2 per cent.

The Stockmann shares that were traded accounted for 0.07
per cent of the share turnover on Helsinki Exchanges. The
company’s market capitalization at December 31, 2003 was
EUR 956 million. The market capitalization at December 31,
2002 was EUR 710 million.

The trading lot for both Series A and Series B shares is 50
shares.

Share capital

Key employee share options 1997

In 1997 a bond loan with share options was offered for sub-
scription to key employees belonging to the senior or middle
management of Stockmann or its subsidiaries. The attached
options were quoted on the Main List of Helsinki Exchanges.
There were a total of 360 000 share options. Each share op-
tion entitled its holder to subscribe for 3.5 Stockmann plc Se-
ries B shares. In the last quarter of the year by December 31,
2003, a total of 1 239 700 shares had been subscribed for with
the share options and in January 2004 by the close of the sub-
scription period on January 31, 2004, 20 300 shares had been
subscribed for. Accordingly, the share options were exer-
cised to subscribe for a total of 1 260 000 Series B shares. The
subscription price of a share through the exercise of share op-
tions was EUR 13.21 per share. 

Key employee share options 2000

In 2000, a total of 2 500 000 share options were granted to key
employees belonging to the senior and middle management
of Stockmann or its subsidiaries.  Option A can be exercised
to subscribe for 625 000 Stockmann Series B shares at a price
of EUR 20 per share, option B to subscribe for 625 000 Series
B shares at a price of EUR 21 per share and option C to sub-
scribe for 1 250 000 Series B shares at a price of EUR 22 per
share.  The subscription price of the share will be reduced by
the amount of the cash dividend payout per share after April
11, 2000, and before the share subscription as determined on
the record date for each dividend payout. The subscription
periods for the shares are as follows: A, April 1, 2003 - April
1, 2007; B, April 1, 2004 - April 1, 2007, and C, April 1, 2005 -
April 1, 2007.

Loyal Customer share options

1 382 524 Loyal Customer share options were subscribed for.
During the share subscription period in 2003, a total of 5 580
Series B shares at a price of EUR 12.16 per share were sub-
scribed for on the basis of the subscribed options. 

The future subscription periods for shares with the Loyal
Customer share options are May 2-May 31, 2004 and May 2-
May 31, 2005. The dividends payable annually are deducted
from the subscription price. The subscription price after the
dividend payout proposed by the Board of Directors for the
2003 financial year is EUR 10.81.

Own shares

The company holds 163 000 of its own Series A shares and 
250 000 of its own Series B shares.  The Series A shares owned
by the company represent 0.3 per cent of the share capital and
0.6 per cent of all the voting rights. The Series B shares owned
by the company represent 0.5 per cent of the share capital and
0.1 per cent of all the voting rights.  The shares in the com-
pany’s possession do not confer voting rights at the general
meetings of shareholders.
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Shareholders at December 31, 2003

Taxation values of shares

The taxation value of the Series A share in 2003 was EUR 12.67
and the taxation value of the Series B share was EUR 12.81. 

Dividend policy

Stockmann's Board of Directors has set the dividend payout
target at a minimum of half of the earnings derived from the
company’s ordinary operations. The financing required to
grow operations is nevertheless taken into account in deter-
mining the dividend. 
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Shares and share capital

The holdings in the personal ownership of the members of the
company’s Board of Directors, CEO and the executive vice
president who acts as the CEO’s alternate, as well as the own-
ership of institutions under their control and persons under
their guardianship at December 31, 2003 was a total of 
6 430 594 shares, which represents a total of 12.2 per cent of
the shares outstanding and 16.5 per cent of the voting rights

(December 31, 2002: 6 526 534 shares, representing 12.7 per
cent of the shares and 16.9 per cent of the voting rights) and
251 423 share options. The share options entitle their holders
to subscribe for 251 423 Stockmann plc Series B shares, which
would have been 0.5 per cent of the total shares outstanding
and 0.1 per cent of all voting rights at December 31, 2003.

Shareholders at December 31, 2003
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Shares and share capital
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Key figures
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Per-share data



Profit and loss account
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Balance sheet
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36%  Non-current assets

24%  Stocks

40%  Financial assets

Assets 2003

69%  Capital and reserves

  9%  Non-current creditors

22%  Current creditors

Financing 2003
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Funds statement
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Notes to the accounts

ACCOUNTING POLICY

General principles
Stockmann’s annual accounts have been prepared
in accordance with the regulations of the Finnish
Accounting Act which came into force on Decem-
ber 31, 1997.

Scope of the consolidated accounts
The consolidated accounts cover the parent com-
pany Stockmann plc and those companies in which
the parent company controls, directly or indirectly,
more than 50 per cent of the voting rights conferred
by the shares as well as those real estate compa-
nies in which the parent company controls, either
directly or indirectly, at least 80 per cent of the vo-
ting rights conferred by the shares. The consoli-
dated accounts cover also 63 percent of the ac-
counts of the partly owned real estate company SIA
Stockmann Centrs in Latvia in proportion to the
Group’s interest in the company.The companies ac-
quired during the year have been included in the
consolidation from the time of acquisition.

Real estate companies in which the Group has an
interest of more than 20 per cent have not been
treated as associated undertakings, nor do other as-
sociated undertakings belong to the Group.

Internal transactions
Transactions as well as debtors and creditors be-
tween Group companies have been eliminated.

Shares in subsidiaries
Shareholdings between Group companies have
been eliminated by the purchase cost method. In
carrying out eliminations, the acquired company’s
provisions at the time of acquisition excluding de-
ferred tax liability are also considered to constitute
the company’s capital and reserves.

The difference between the purchase price of
subsidiary shares and equity has been allocated in
part to fixed assets. The proportion exceeding go-
ing values is shown as a separate goodwill item
which is amortized on a straight-line basis over a
period of five years.

Subsidiaries abroad
In the consolidated accounts all items in profit and
loss accounts of foreign subsidiaries have been
translated into euros at the average exchange rates
for the year. The balance sheets have been trans-
lated into euros at the rate prevailing on the balance
sheet date.

The translation differences arising on the elimi-
nation of the capital and reserves of subsidiaries
have been entered in capital and reserves. The an-
nual account figures for Russian subsidiaries have
been translated into euros using the monetary-
non-monetary method according to which fixed as-
sets, stocks and equity are translated into euros at
the rates prevailing at the time of acquisition and
the other balance sheet items at the rates prevail-
ing on the balance sheet date and, furthermore, the
profit and loss account is translated at the average
monthly rate on a month-by-month basis.

Transactions in foreign currencies
At the end of accounting period foreign currency
debtors and creditors in the balance sheet are trans-
lated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet
date. Gains and losses on foreign exchange in finan-
cial operations are entered as net amounts under oth-
er financial income or other financial expenses.

Net turnover
Net turnover comprises sales income excluding in-
direct taxes, discounts granted and foreign ex-
change differences.

Other operating income
The items stated as other operating income are
capital gains on the sale of non-current assets con-
nected with business operations, compensation ob-
tained from the sale of businesses as well as
charges for services rendered to foreign sub-
sidiaries.

Extraordinary income and expenses
The items stated as extraordinary income and ex-
penses are non-recurring income and expenses
that are not a part of ordinary operations.

Taxes
The direct taxes entered in the profit and loss ac-
count are the taxes corresponding to Group com-
panies’ net profits for the financial year as well as
rectifications of taxes for previous financial years.

In the consolidated accounts the deferred tax li-
ability is calculated for all the periodization differ-
ences between the annual accounts and taxation,
applying the tax base for the next year, which has
been confirmed at the balance sheet date. The de-
ferred tax liability has not, however, been calculat-
ed for revaluations nor in the Russian subsidiaries
for the differences in non-current assets between
the consolidated annual accounts and local taxation.
Deferred tax liabilities and tax assets are included
entirely in the consolidated balance sheet.

Tangible and intangible assets 
and depreciation on them
Tangible and intangible assets are valued accord-
ing to the original cost excluding planned depreci-
ation. The balance sheet values furthermore in-
clude revaluations of land areas and buildings.

Revaluations have been made during the period
from 1950 to 1984 and are based on then esti-
mates of real-estate valuers. Revaluations are not
depreciated.

Planned depreciation is based on the original
cost and the estimated economically useful life of
intangible and tangible assets as follows:

• Intangible assets: 5 years
• Goodwill and goodwill arising on 

consolidation: 5 years
• Other capitalized long-term expenses:

5-20 years
• Buildings: 20-50 years
• Machinery and equipment: 4-12 years
• Lightweight store furnishings, motor vehicles

and data processing equipment: 4-5 years 

Securities included in non-current assets are
valued at acquisition cost or, if their market value
has decreased permanently, at this lower value.

Current assets
Securities included in financial assets are valued at
acquisition cost or, if their value is lower, at this
lower value.

In the valuation of stocks the principle of lowest
value has been used, i.e. the stocks have been en-
tered in the balance sheet at the lowest of acquisi-
tion cost or a lower repurchase price or the proba-
ble market price. The acquisition cost of stocks has
been defined applying the variable expenses in-
curred in making the purchase in accordance with
the FiFo principle.

Obligatory provisions
Expenditure to which the company has committed
but which has not yet been realized, for example re-
structuring cost, is shown as obligatory provisions
in the balance sheet. Expenses corresponding to
the obligatory provisions are included in the in-
come statement in a relevant group of expenses.

Appropriations
The parent company’s appropriations comprise the
depreciation difference and voluntary provisions.
The change in deferred tax liability resulting from
the change in appropriations has been stated in
taxes in the consolidated accounts. Accumulated
appropriations in the consolidated accounts are di-
vided into a portion in deferred tax liability and a
portion in capital and reserves.
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Notes to the accounts
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Notes to the accounts
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Notes to the accounts
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Notes to the accounts
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Notes to the accounts

Proposal for the distribution of parent company profit

According to the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the distributable funds at December 31, 2003, were EUR 227.1 million.
The parent company’s distributable funds according to the balance sheet at December 31, 2003, were EUR 221.4 million.
According to the Parent Company Balance Sheet at December 31, 2003, the following amounts are at the disposal 
of the Annual General Meeting:

• retained earnings, including the Contingency fund 123 969 228.37
• net profit for the financial year 97 388 841.33

221 358 069.70

The Board of Directors proposes that this amount be distributed as follows:

on the 52 216 341 shares owned by external parties be paid
• a dividend of EUR 0.90 per share for the 2003 financial year 46 994 706.90
• a bonus dividend of EUR 0.45 per share 23 497 353.45
• to be carried forward to the Contingency fund and Retained earnings 150 866 009.35

221 358 069.70

Helsinki, February 12, 2004

Board of Directors

Lasse Koivu

Erik Anderson               Erkki Etola               Eva Liljeblom

Kari Niemistö               Christoffer Taxell               Henry Wiklund

CEO
Hannu Penttilä
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Auditors’ report

To the shareholders of Stockmann plc

We have audited the accounting and the financial statements,
as well as the administration by the Board of Directors and
the CEO of Stockmann plc for the year ended 31 December
2003. The financial statements, which include the report of
the Board of Directors, consolidated and parent company in-
come statements, balance sheets, cash flow statements and
notes to the financial statements, have been prepared by the
Board of Directors and the CEO. Based on our audit we ex-
press an opinion on these financial statements and on the
company’s administration.

We have conducted the audit in accordance with Finnish
Generally Accepted Auditing Standards. Those standards
require that we perform the audit in order to obtain reason-
able assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and dis-
closures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by the man-
agement, as well as evaluating the overall financial state-
ment presentation. The purpose of our audit of the adminis-
tration has been to examine that the members of the Board
of Directors and the CEO have complied with the rules of the
Finnish Companies Act.

In our opinion, the financial statements, showing a profit
of EUR 51,658,635.82 in the consolidated income statement
and a profit of EUR 97,388,841.33 in the parent company in-
come statement, have been prepared in accordance with the
Finnish Accounting Act and other rules and regulations gov-
erning the preparation of financial statements in Finland. The
financial statements give a true and fair view, as defined in
the Finnish Accounting Act, of both the consolidated and
parent company’s result of operations, as well as of the finan-
cial position. The financial statements with the consolidated
financial statements can be adopted and the members of the
Board of Directors and the CEO of the parent company can
be discharged from liability for the period audited by us. The
proposal by the Board of Directors on how to deal with the
distributable funds is in compliance with the Finnish Com-
panies Act.

Helsinki, 26 February 2004

Henrik Holmbom Wilhelm Holmberg
Authorized Public Accountant Authorized Public Accountant  
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Corporate management 
and administration
Aleksanterinkatu 52 B
P.O. BOX 220, FI-00101 HELSINKI
Tel. +358 9 1211
Fax +358 9 121 3101
www.stockmann.fi
E-mail: first name.surname@stockmann.fi

CEO Hannu Penttilä
Executive Vice President Henri Bucht,
responsible for the Hobby Hall Division
Executive Vice President Jukka Hienonen,
responsible for the Department Store Division

Accounting Manager Eva Mansikka-Mikkola
Chief Financial Officer Pekka Vähähyyppä
Company Lawyer Jukka Naulapää
Corporate Communications, 
Manager Juhana Häme
Financial Manager Jutta Tuominen
Group Controller Eija Herttuainen
Information Technology, 
Director Päivi Hokkanen
Internal Audit, Manager Tapio Helle
Personnel Director Merja Lönnroth-Laaksonen
Technical Director Thomas Lönnberg

Department Store Division
Kutomotie 1 C
P.O. BOX 147, FI-00381 HELSINKI
Tel. +358 9 121 51
Fax +358 9 121 5812
E-mail: first name.surname@stockmann.fi

Loyal Customer Service
Tel. +358 203 50203
E-mail: loyalcustomer@stockmann.fi

Purchasing
Fax +358 9 121 5960 women’s fashion and
cosmetics, +358 9 121 5665 men’s fashion,
+358 9 121 5839 women’s accessories, 
+358 9 121 5299 children’s and youth’s fash-
ion, sports and hobbies, +358 9 121 4241
home interior and household, stationery, 
+358 9 121 5671 food, +358 9 121 5995 con-
sumer electronics

Marketing
Fax +358 9 121 5512

Management
Jukka Hienonen, Director of the Department
Store Division
Karl Stockmann, Helsinki Department Store
and Department Stores in Finland
Jussi Kuutsa, International Operations
Maaret Kuisma, Marketing
Leena Lassila, Purchasing: Fashion
Lars Eklundh, Purchasing: Non-fashion
Goods, International Operations
Risto Penttilä, Administration

Contact information

Department stores and 
other stores in Finland

Helsinki Department Store
Aleksanterinkatu 52
P.O. BOX 220, FI-00101 HELSINKI
Tel. +358 9 1211
Fax +358 9 121 3632
Terhi Okkonen, Sales Director

Export and Shopping Service
Fax +358 9 121 3267

Business to Business Service
Fax +358 9 121 3782

Itäkeskus Department Store
Itäkatu 1-5 C 124, FI-00930 HELSINKI
Tel. +358 9 121 461
Fax +358 9 121 4655
Pirjo Pyykkö, Director

Oulu Department Store
Kirkkokatu 14
P.O. BOX 230, FI-90101 OULU
Tel. +358 8 317 9411
Fax +358 8 317 9433
Pentti Korhonen, Director

Tampere Department Store
Hämeenkatu 4
P.O. BOX 291, FI-33101 TAMPERE
Tel. +358 3 248 0111
Fax +358 3 213 3573
Eija Vartila, Director

Tapiola Department Store
Länsituulentie 5, FI-02100 ESPOO
Tel. +358 9 121 21
Fax +358 9 121 2269
Heini Pirttijärvi, Director

Turku Department Store
Yliopistonkatu 22
P.O. BOX 626, FI-20101 TURKU
Tel. +358 2 265 6611
Fax +358 2 265 6714
Juha Oksanen, Director

Academic Bookstore
Keskuskatu 1
P.O. BOX 128, FI-00101 HELSINKI
Tel. +358 9 121 41
Fax +358 9 121 4245
www.akateeminen.com
Stig-Björn Nyberg, Director

Bookstores 

Helsinki centre, Itäkeskus, 
Tapiola, Tampere, Turku

Stockmann Outlet
Kuriiritie 17, FI-01370 VANTAA
Tel. +358 9 121 6551
Fax +358 9 121 6549

Stockmann Beauty
Kutomotie 1 C
P.O. BOX 147, FI-00381 HELSINKI
Tel. +358 9 121 51
Fax +358 9 121 5812
Raija-Leena Söderholm, Director

Stores

Forum Shopping Centre
Mannerheimintie 20 
FI-00100 HELSINKI
Tel. +358 10 850 1026
Fax +358 9 694 0387

Jumbo Shopping Centre
Vantaanportinkatu 3
FI-01510 VANTAA
Tel. +358 10 850 1020
Fax +358 9 694 4763

Aapeli Shopping Centre 
Kauppakatu 26-30
FI-70100 KUOPIO
Tel. +358 10 850 1042
Fax +358 17 363 2039

Trio Shopping Centre
Aleksanterinkatu 18
FI-15140 LAHTI
Tel. +358 10 850 1023
Fax +358 3 733 4011

Koulukatu 11
FI-60100 SEINÄJOKI
Tel. +358 10 850 1032
Fax +358 6 312 6252

Koskikeskus Shopping Centre
Hatanpään valtatie 1
FI-33100 TAMPERE
Tel. +358 10 850 1029
Fax +358 3 212 9843

Rewell Center Shopping Centre
Ylätori
FI-65100 VAASA
Tel. +358 10 850 1035
Fax +358 6 414 6716 

Zara
Z-Fashion Finland Oy
Aleksanterinkatu 52
FI-00100 HELSINKI
Tel. +358 9 121 4409
Fax +358 9 121 3632
Kati Varhee, Chain Manager

Stores

Aleksanterinkatu 19
FI-00100 HELSINKI
Tel. +358 9 2530 0300
Fax +358 9 2530 0321

Itäkeskus, Itäkatu 1-5
FI-00930 HELSINKI
Tel. +358 10 850 1120
Fax +358 9 694 0856 
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Yliopistonkatu 20
FI-20100 TURKU
Tel. +358 10 850 1130
Fax +358 2 2478 2004

International Operations

Joint Operations
Kutomotie 1 C
P.O. BOX 147, FI-00381 HELSINKI
Tel. +358 9 121 51
Fax +358 9 121 5250
Jussi Kuutsa, Director

Russia

Moscow Office
ZAO Kalinka-Stockmann
Proezd Olminskogo 3 a
129085 MOSCOW, Russia
Tel. +7 095 974 0122
Fax +7 095 282 0189
Petri Anttila, Region Director for Russia

Smolenskaya Department Store
Smolenskaya Square, 3
121099 MOSCOW, Russia
Tel. +7 095 785 2500
Fax +7 095 785 2505
Julia Peskina, Director

Mega South Department Store 
(Opening in April 2004)

Mega Teplyj Stan Shopping Centre
142704 MOSCOW REGION, Russia
Tel. + 7 095 980 8282
Fax + 7 095 980 8283
Jussi Tuisku, Director

Mega North Department Store 
(Opening late 2004)

Mega Khimki Shopping Centre
141400 MOSCOW REGION, Russia
Tel. +7 095 974 0122
Fax +7 095 784 7383
Jouko Pitkänen, Director

Leninsky boutique
Leninsky Prospect 73/8
117296 MOSCOW, Russia
Tel. +7 095 134 3546
Fax +7 095 134 3546

Fashion Store
Nevsky Prospect 25
191186 ST. PETERSBURG, Russia
Tel. +7 812 326 2635
Fax +7 812 326 2635
Rimma Romanova, Region Manager

Supermarket
Finlandsky Prospect 1
194175 ST. PETERSBURG, Russia
Tel. +7 812 542 5452
Fax +7 812 542 8866

Zara
Mega Teplyj Stan Shopping Centre
142704 MOSCOW REGION, Russia
Tel. +7 095 797 6838
Fax +7 095 797 6835

Estonia

Tallinn Department Store
Liivalaia 53
10145 TALLINN, Estonia
Tel. +372 6 339 500
Fax +372 6 339 556
Maisa Romanainen, Director

Latvia

Riga Department Store
13. Janvara iela 8
RIGA LV-1050, Latvia
Tel. +371 707 1200
Fax +371 707 3227
Harri Saarto, Director

Vehicle Division
Kutomotie 1 A
P.O. BOX 157, FI-00381 HELSINKI
Tel. +358 9 121 51
Fax +358 9 121 5401
E-mail: first name.surname@stockmann.fi

Management
Esa Mäkinen, Director
Eero Lemberg, After Sales Development
Tuija Pesonen, Financial Administration

Ford
Stockmann Auto

Helsinki, Herttoniemi
Valurinkatu 1
FI-00880 HELSINKI
Tel. +358 9 121 481
Fax +358 9 121 4848
Mikko Koivunen, Sales Director, Ford

Helsinki, Pitäjänmäki
Kutomotie 1 A
P.O. BOX 157, FI-00381 HELSINKI
Tel. +358 9 121 51
Fax +358 9 121 5401
Juha Sandell, Sales Manager

Espoo, Niittykumpu
Kotitontuntie 2
FI-02200 ESPOO
Tel. +38 9 121 771
Fax +358 9 121 7740
Tom Mörck, Unit Manager

Vantaa, Tikkurila
Kuriiritie 19
FI-01510 VANTAA
Tel. +358 9 121 6500
Fax +358 9 121 6505
Harri Kalliola, Unit Manager

Helsinki, Lauttasaari (Servicing)
Vattuniemenkatu 27
FI-00210 HELSINKI
Tel. +358 9 121 6151
Fax +358 9 121 6163

Turku
Satakunnantie 164
FI-20320 TURKU
Tel. +358 2 273 6900
Fax +358 2 273 6940
Matti Ristimäki, Director

Volkswagen, Audi
Stockmann

Helsinki, Herttoniemi
Mekaanikonkatu 10
FI-00880 HELSINKI
Tel. +358 9 121 721
Fax +358 9 121 7300
Juha Hirvonen, Sales Director, 
Volkswagen

Helsinki, Kruununhaka (Servicing)
Mariankatu 22
FI-00170 HELSINKI
Tel. +358 9 121 5648
Fax +358 9 121 5637

Helsinki, Pitäjänmäki
Kutomotie 1 A
P.O. BOX 157, FI-00381 HELSINKI
Tel. +358 9 121 51
Fax +358 9 121 5281
Jaakko Juvakka, Sales Manager

Helsinki, Pitäjänmäki 
(Servicing and body repairshop)
Takkatie 7 a
FI-00370 HELSINKI
Tel. +358 9 121 645
Fax +358 9 121 6400

Helsinki, Lauttasaari (Servicing)
Vattuniemenkatu 27
FI-00210 HELSINKI
Tel. +358 9 121 6151
Fax +358 9 121 6163

Audi
Stockmann

Espoo, Suomenoja 
(Opening in spring 2004)
Martinkuja 6
FI-02270 ESPOO
Tel. +358 9 121 781
Fax +358 9 121 7828
Harri Buddas, Sales Director, Audi

Volkswagen
Stockmann

Espoo, Suomenoja
Isonniitynkuja 2
FI-02270 ESPOO
Tel. +358 9 121 751
Fax +358 9 121 7559
Jari Hella, Unit Manager

Vantaa, Veromies (Servicing incl. AUDI)
Kiitoradantie 2
FI-01530 VANTAA
Tel. +358 9 121 761
Fax +358 9 121 7626
Pasi Järvinen, Unit Manager �

¯ ¯
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Contact information

Multi-make repairshop
Stockmann

Tyre service and small repairs
Vantaa, Tikkurila
Kuriiritie 17
FI-01510 VANTAA
Tel. +358 9 121 6524
Fax +358 9 121 6521

Institutional sales of spare parts
(All product lines)

Helsinki, Pitäjänmäki
Takkatie 7 a
FI-00370 HELSINKI
Tel. +358 9 121 645
Fax +358 9 121 6400

Skoda
AutoCenter Stockmann

Tampere, Hatanpää 
Lahdenperänkatu 3
FI-33900 TAMPERE
Tel. +358 3 3123 4111
Fax +358 3 3123 4129
Martti Ilonen, Director

Hobby Hall
Hämeentie 157
FI-00560 HELSINKI
Tel. +358 9 777 611
Fax +358 9 7776 1381
www.hobbyhall.fi
E-mail:
first name.surname@hobbyhall.fi

Management
Henri Bucht, Managing Director
Pekka Polvinen, Commercial Operations
Seppo Jurvainen, Information Technology
Kimmo Mäki, Logistics
Tuomas Sahi, Service, stores in Finland
Outi Kuisma, Customership Development
Teija Niemi, Finance
Niina Nenonen, Purchasing

Customer Service
Tel. +358 106 7722
E-mail: asiakaspalvelu@hobbyhall.fi

Logistics Centres
Tahkotie 2
FI-01740 VANTAA
Tel. +358 9 777 611
Fax +358 9 7776 1481

Valimotie 11
FI-01510 VANTAA
Tel. +358 9 777 611
Fax +358 9 7776 1597

Stores in Finland

Hämeentie 157
FI-00560 HELSINKI
Tel. +358 9 7776 1286
Fax +358 9 7776 1290

Valimotie 11
FI-01510 VANTAA
Tel. +358 9 7776 1425
Fax +358 9 7776 1614

Estonia

Customer Service
Tel. +372 6 339 600
Fax +372 6 339 603
www.hobbyhall.com
Riitta Kinnunen, Manager, 
operations in Estonia

Store

Paldiski maantee 102
Rocca al Mare kaubanduskeskus
10149 TALLINN, Estonia
Tel. +372 6 659 065

Latvia

Customer Service
Tel. +371 7073 200
Fax +371 7073 215
Heidi Ruippo, Manager, operations in
Latvia (until March 31, 2004)
Reetta von Knorring, Manager, operations
in Latvia (from April 1, 2004)

Lithuania

Customer Service
Tel. +370 5 210 2555
Fax +370 5 210 2550
Reetta von Knorring, Manager, 
operations in Lithuania

Seppälä
Tikkurilantie 146
P.O. BOX 234, FI-01531 VANTAA
Tel. +358 9 825 981
Fax +358 9 825 1100
E-mail: first name.surname@stockmann.fi

Management
Heikki Väänänen, Managing Director
Jussi Kumpulainen, Financial Administration
Nina Laine-Haaja, Stores Functions
Sinikka Salminen, Logistics
Tiina Kuusisto, Marketing
Memme Ilmakunnas, Children’s and Men’s
Wear, Cosmetics
Anja Rissanen, Ladies’ Wear

Stores in Finland

Alajärvi, Espoo (4), Forssa, Hamina,
Haukipudas, Heinola, Helsinki (8), Hollola,
Huittinen, Hyvinkää, Hämeenlinna (2),
Iisalmi, Imatra (2), Joensuu (2), Jyväskylä
(3), Jämsä, Järvenpää, Kaarina, Kajaani,
Kangasala, Kankaanpää, Karhula (2),
Kauhajoki, Kauhava, Kemi, Kemijärvi,
Kempele, Kerava, Keuruu, Kirkkonummi,
Klaukkala, Kokkola (2), Kotka, Kouvola (2),
Kuopio (3), Kurikka, Kuusamo, Kuusankos-
ki, Lahti (3), Lappeenranta (2), Lapua,

Laukaa, Lempäälä, Lieksa, Lohja, Loimaa,
Loviisa, Mikkeli, Muurame, Mäntsälä,
Naantali, Nastola, Nivala, Nokia, Orimatti-
la, Oulu (3), Palokka, Parainen, Pello, Piek-
sämäki, Pietarsaari, Pirkkala (2), Pori (3),
Porvoo, Raahe, Raisio, Rauma, Riihimäki,
Rovaniemi, Salo, Savonlinna, Seinäjoki (2),
Siilinjärvi, Sodankylä, Sotkamo, Tam-
misaari, Tampere (5), Tornio, Turku (5),
Uusikaupunki, Vaasa, Valkeakoski, Vam-
mala, Vantaa (3), Varkaus, Ylivieska,
Ylöjärvi, Äänekoski.

Estonia
Haapsalu, Kohtla-Järve, Narva, Pärnu,
Tallinn (6), Tartu (2), Viljandi

Latvia
Riga (4)

Russia
Moscow (Opening in April 2004)

ˇ





Aleksanterinkatu 52 B

P.O.Box  220

FI-00101 Helsinki

Tel. +358 9 1211

www.stockmann.fi
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